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“ZERA regulates the Zimbabwean energy market cost
effectively, through incentive regulation and in a fair and
transparent manner to achieve sustainable energy.”

Mission

Vision
“Regulator that promotes universal

access to sustainable energy by 2030”
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1. Transparency
2. Responsiveness
3. Integrity
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newelectricitylicenceswith total
capacity of 79.56206MW
electricity
licenses were issued in 2022 as
compared to17 in2021 (529.9MW)

of energy supplied in 2022
against 10, 193GWhof 2021

supplied385.2GWh in 2022
against 131.1 GWh in 2021

1,041 billion litres of diesel in 2022
against 850million litres in 2021 and
614 million litres of petrol in 2022
against510millionlitres in2021.

retail sites licensed in 2022
against882 in 2021.

Independent Power Producers
powerprojectswereoperational out
of 115 licensed by end of 2022
compared to20outof96 in 2021

of LPG imported in 2022 against
56,789,548kgs in2021.

18 10,710 GWh IPPs

Total fuel
imported in2022 is

1.734
billion litres 905 32

inspections under energy efficiency
program resulted in seizure of
0.63MWworthofbannedproducts

4,046
lighting products verified for
complianceand127registered

208 59,898,544 kgs

being thecustomers satisfaction
rateof theyear against targetof60%

73.78%
successrateof resolving consumer
complaints in2022 ascompared to
82.35% in2021

90.37%
fromZWL$3,957,295,301to
ZWL$6,891,379,263 in2021
and2022 respectively.

Inflationadjusted
revenue increasedby74%

from ZWL$856,752,166 to
ZWL$989,973,606 in 2021 and
2022 respectively.

Inflationadjusted
surplus increasedby16%

THEYEAROF2022
INNUMBERS

The Year of 2022 in Numbers



ZERA Annual Report 2022

2

New Section Heading

3

1.1.1. Introduction

It givesme greate pleasure to present the Annual
Report 2022 for Zimbabwe Energy Regulatory
Authority (ZERA). The global energy crisis
continues andthisconundrumcalls forinnovative
ways to be proffered by the Zimbabwe Energy
Regulatory Authority to ensure that power and
energy isavailable togrow theeconomic growth.
For the celebratory year of 2022, the Authority
managed to perform beyond expectations in
the key result areas of fuel quality compliance
to standards, electricity transmission and
distribution infrastructure compliances to codes,
processing of fuel prices, stakeholdersatisfaction
and resolution of public complaints. Looking into
2023, I am confident that we can build on the
initiatives of 2022, as ZERA aims for sustainable
energy.

Through dialogue, concerted efforts, and

engagements, we hope to entice the local
financial markets, and in particular, the Pension
Funds to invest in independent power plants
(IPPs) and increase renewableenergygeneration,
since they are prescribed assets. The Authority
will continue to review electricity tariffs and
petroleum retail margins to attract investors in
the energyand power sector.

Consideration to carry buffer stocks to be held by
oil companies will be considered to ensure that
thecountrycansail throughtransientturbulences
that maybe outsideour control.
The Authority hopes to automate most of its
operations, and in particular the accounting
systems. Technical audits will be undertaken to
ensure compliances with auditing standards.
Research and development will be enhanced to
explore areas of energy efficiencies as well as
having importsubstitutionsonmanycomponents
used in the generation of power.
The implementation of the SystemDevelopment
Plan will be promoted to ensure that least cost
generation plan is implemented in a least cost
procurement manner.
Further decentralisation of operations will be
undertaken, and more regional offices opened
to enable a faster and efficient responsiveness to
stakeholder needs and enhance the Authority’s
image. Lastly, theAuthority hopes tohelp expand
the energy sector to the rural areas so that the
goal ofuniversal access to energy is realised.

1.1.2. Macroeconomicoverview

The Authority prevailed in a hyperinflationary
environment that persisted in the year, thereby
affecting pricing of energy products. The
exchange rate instability, unsustainable debt
levels, increased the cost of production whilst
reducing incentives for productivity-enhancing
investment. The country’s economy mainly

1.1 Chairperson’s
Statement

Dr.D.D.Madzikanda
Board Chairperson

Chairperson’s Statement
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depended on mining and agriculture, which
sectorshadtobesupportedwithenergyprovision
to ensure theykept the economy inmotion.

1.1.3. EnergyMarket

Despite the economic turbulence, coupled with
the implications of the Russia-Ukrainian War,
the Authority was challenged to find solutions,
and advise government on how to ensure a
consistent supply of fuel at affordable prices to
the end user. The Government took measures to
protect consumers, manufacturing, agricultural
and mining industries continued operating even
as thecostof oil roseon the internationalmarket.

The low supply of electricity which was primarily
due to low generation at Kariba Power Station
because of depleted water levels and curtailed
output from thermal stations, resulted with
supply-demand imbalances leading to power
curtailment to customers. This necessitated the
Authority to engage all stakeholders on how to
avert a crisis, with a strong focus on investments
by consumers in Roof top PV solar systems for
own generation as well as net metering any
excess energy to thenational grid.
Incentive Regulation

1.1.3.1. Electricity

In line with the Electricity Act, the Authority
continued to implement tariff adjustments
indexed to the exchange rate and inflation to
ensure preservation of the approved tariff level
of USc10.63/kWh.

The objective was to ensure that ZETDC’s
financial performancewas notadversely affected,
resulting in capacitating the Utility to improve its
service delivery and undertake the necessary
mandatory maintenance on equipment. The
focus was also to allow the Utility to improve its
operational efficiency and cut down on costs
without necessarily relying on tariff increases.

It is encouraging that eleven (11) new licence
applications were received in 2022 with a total
installed capacity of 177.925MW. Six (6) projects
would feed into the grid, one (1) was for captive
power and four (4) were for own consumption.
Ten (10) of the projects are solar photovoltaic
while one (1) will be coal-fired.

The Net Metering campaign promises to bring
themuch-needed KWhs to the grid, as thecall to

both the public and organisations grows louder,
and a significant numberheeding the call.

1.1.3.2. Petroleum

A 10% growth on average in Gas infrustructure
was realised in thesub-sector with905 retail sites
licensed in2022 against882 in the previousyear.
Thesamegrowthwasrealised in theconsumption
of both liquid petroleum and liquefied petroleum
gas which increased significantly during the year
2022. It is the responsibility of the Authority to
ensure that licensed sites have been inspected
and are compliant to the set regulations and
therefore adequate to service consumers.

The service station grading system gained
momentum, with over 324 sites graded at
the close of the year 2022. This will see an
improvement in the petroleum industry, as fuel
retailers follow set standards in service delivery,
whilst consumershavebeenempoweredtomake
informed decisionwhenchoosingto useaservice
station. This is because the grading system is
based on compliance to customer service and
technical standards, therefore offering best
customer experience and benchmarked to
international standards.

1.1.4. CorporateGovernance

The Board recognises the importance of good
corporate governance and remains committed
to conducting the business of the Authority
with integrity and in line with best corporate
governance practices. The Board’s top priority
was to improve performance of the Authority
and enable it to regulate the energy industry so
that it continuesto bethea catalyst inthe growth
of the Zimbabwean economy, as the country
progresses towards attaining Vision 2030.

1.1.5. StakeholderEngagementand
AdvisoryServices

The 10th anniversary celebrations were centred
on re-engaging stakeholders, old and new,
re-introduced the Authority and its mandate
to them. It was a point of reflection for the
Authority, a moment of review and feedback
from stakeholders howZERA had fared in it’s first
decade ofexistence.Thefeedback willbeusedby
the Authority to chart theway forwardregulating
the energysector.

Chairperson’s Statement
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Chairperson’s Statement

1.1.6. FinanceandAdministration

Inflation adjusted revenue increased by 74%
from ZWL$3,957,295,301 to ZWL$6,891,379,263
in 2021 and 2022 respectively, operating
expenses increased from ZWL$ 2,428,676,267 to
ZWL$4,383,526,108 forthe comparativeyears. In
2022, the Authority realized an inflation adjusted
surplus of ZWL$989,973,606 up from a restated
surplus of ZWL$856,752,166 in 2021, an increase
of 80%.

The net worth of the Authority for theyear ended
31 December 2022 was at ZWL$3,532,263,968
compared to ZWL$2,528,646,528 in the prior
year and this accounted for a40% increase from
2021 to2022.

In regards to the electricity account, a surplus of
ZWL$ 113,612,416 was realized in comparison to
a surplusof ZWL$28,749,071` inthe prioryear. In
accordance withtheEnergyRegulatory Authority
Act (Chapter13:23) section 31, ZERA is required
to remit surplus funds realized in the electricity
account to the Rural Electrification Fund.

1.1.7. Way forward

The continuation of the global energy crisis calls
for innovative ways, to proffered by the Authority
to ensure security of energy supply to enable
growth of the economy. Looking into 2023, ZERA
is confident that it can build on the initiatives of
2022, toachieve it’s strategic planobjectives.

1.1.8. Appreciation

ZERA is committed to continue driving
the development of the energy industry in
Zimbabwe, and is confident that this will be
reflected in it’s performance in the coming years.
My appreciation goes to the Ministry of Energy
and Power Development and other government
arms that facilitated and enabled achievement
of key performance indicators set for the year.
The private sector ought to be commended for
sustaining the petroleum and gas sector using
their free funds. My gratitude is extended to my
fellow Board Members for providing direction in
the various Board Committees and overseeing
the operations of ZERA, to the Management
and staff of ZERA, for the continued support
and commitment as evidenced in the 2022
performance of the organisation and lastly to the
rest of our stakeholders for giving us invaluable
input in regulating the energy and power sector.
We are committed to continuing to drive the
development of the energy sector in Zimbabwe,
and we are confident that this will be reflected
in our performance in the coming years as we
continue to create value for the energy and
power sector.

________________________________
Dr.D.Madzikanda
Board Chairperson
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Chief Executive Officer’s Overview

1.2.1. Introduction

In the year 2022, the Authority commemorated
its 10th anniversary since its establishment.
Stakeholder dinners and inaugural ZERA Charity
Golf Tournamentsthatwereheld inBulawayoand
Harare, aswellas thecelebrationsthat tookplace
during the ZITF 2022 edition, served as platforms
for the Authority to re-invigorate itself in the
market. The 10th anniversarywas an opportunity
to retrospect on the major achievements of
the Authority, identify the shortcomings and
therefore re-strategize on how to embrace the
future. In all its activities, the Authority took
the opportunity to re-engage its stakeholders
across the country in a bid to understand how
stakeholders perceive the Authority and its
mandate.

1.2.2. OperationalOverview

The organisational overall performance in 2022
stood at 102%. This is a commendable effort by
the Authority’s board management and staff,
who under the most difficult working conditions,
serve theorganisationand it successfullyexecute
itsmandate.

1.2.3. Electricitysub-sectorregulation

Electricity supply increased marginally (5%) to
a total of 10,710 GWh of energy in 2022 against
10,193GWh of 2021. There however continues to
be a deficit in supply and measures to mitigate
this include attracting new investment and risk
mitigation in the form of government support.
Independent Power Producers (IPPs) contributed
only 4.5%of the total energy production in 2022.

To accelerate renewable energy penetration, the
Authority increased the Net Metering maximum
participation threshold to 5MW from 100kW
allowing more consumer with excess generation
to be exported to the grid. The initial response to
the schemewas encouraging as5MWwas linked
to the grid by the end of 2022.This scheme is
expected to beexpanded further in2023 through
the introduction of virtual net metering whereby
the energy credits can be passed to other
accounts not necessarily linked to themeter with
generation.

Regulations/codes covering improved energy
access, energy efficiency and renewable energy
were developed/revised during the year and
these are expected to improve the regulatory
framework. These include the Generation Code
and Third-Party Access Code.

The Authority remains concerned about safety
in the sector where the number of electrical

EdingtonMazambani
Chief Executive Officer

1.2 Chief Executive
Officer’sOverview
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accidents recorded increased to 88 from 74 in
2021(a 18.92% increase. Various initiatives were
taken to mitigate the incidences of collapsed
infrastructure and unsafe practices by members
of the public, which were the main causes of
the accidents. These initiatives included public
awarenesscampaigns,developmentofstandards
for reticulationafter themeter.

The Authority continued to enforce energy
conservationmeasures through lighting products
inspections for banned and sub-standard
products. The efforts are slowly bearing fruit as
retailers are now wary of trade in banned and
sub-standard products as the compliance rate
increased from81.89% in2021 to85.66% in2022.
Training in energy management was conducted
to increase sector capacity ahead of Energy
Management Regulation to be published soon.

Electricity transmission and distribution
infrastructure compliance audits were in their
fifth year and the compliance levels are steadily
increasing. TheAuthoritycontinues to encourage
licensees to self-audit regularly so as to maintain
their networks in an orderly andsafe manner.

Distribution Code complianceauditswere carried
out on distribution infrastructure throughout the
year and the overall compliance levels was 76%,
up from 75% in 2021.

The Authority took an active role in the
development of the National Electric Mobility
Policy, Energy Efficiency policy and Market
Readiness Framework for Zimbabwe by the
Ministry of Energy and Power Development.
Adoption of e-mobility is expected to increase in
line with global trends and as the public is being
exposed to the benefitsof e-mobility.

In 2022 the Board directed that Research and
Development activities be stepped up and that
5% of the Authority’s budget be committed to
this area. Theauthority therefore issuedasecond
call for proposals during the year and this should
increase the overall R&D projects in 2023.These
projects are to focus mainly on heritage based
renewable energy research to address real
challenges in the energysector.

1.2.4. Petroleumsub-sectorregulation

In the year under review, the Authority licensed
905 retails sites compared to 882 licensed in
2021. This reflects the continued steady growth

of the petroleum sector, as we see a stability in
the supply of main fuels in the country. To note,
is that consumption trends are commensurate
to the corresponding increases in importation
of each product, with the bulk of petroleum
products beingconsumed in the domestic (retail)
sector, commercial andtransport. A totalof 1.734
billion litres of fuel was imported into the country
in 2022 against 850 million litres imported in
2021, representing the highest quantity ever to
be imported into thecountry.

However, the entire year of 2022 had extremely
high volatility in the price of crude oil due to a
variety of global events that had an impact on
the oil market, including the conflict in Russia and
Ukraine, COVID-19 in China, and production cuts
by OPEC+, amongother factors.
LPGpricingwentondownwardtrendbeginningat
USD2.05 in January 2022 and closing at USD1.85
in December 2022. Themajor determinant of the
final LPG price has been the changes in the prices
at source.

For compliance to petroleum standards, a total
of 574 fuel retail sites were visited. Of these
sites, 56 were first time applicants for licences
indicating a 10%growth rate in the subsector for
the year 2022. A total of 47 applications for retail
licenses were rejected in the year due to poor
infrastructure standardsendangering safety.
As the Authority piloted the Fuel Service Station
Grading system, a total of 324 retail sites were
gradedintheyear.Ofthegradedsites,10%scored
a 5-starrating, 62.40%,scored 3-starand 27.60%
scored a 1-star. The grading system is meant to
promote service excellence in the sector, as well
as offer consumers a holistic service at each visit
to the service station.

A total of 149 cases for liquid fuels and LPG
were filed with the Police and prosecuted for
either operating without valid ZERA licenses
or charging above the Authority’s prescribed
prices. There was a 25% increase on cases filed
for prosecution in 2022 and this is attributed to
the number of new ‘unlicensed’ LPG operators,
who set up operations without fully regularizing
their business. However, 90% of the prosecuted
operators wereable toregularize theiroperations
during the trading period under review.

1.2.5. Stakeholder Engagement and
AdvisoryServices

The key highlights of theAuthority’s Stakeholder

Chief Executive Officer’s Overview
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Engagement for the year, included the National
Stakeholder Satisfaction Survey and Energy Use
Survey whose Stakeholder Satisfaction index
stood at 73.78%, and it was established that
electricity remains the most used form of energy
in the country.

In addition, the Authority held a Stakeholder
Feedback Workshop, which brought together
various stakeholders in their distinct categories
to proffer suggestions to the Authority regards
servicedeliveryintheenergysector.Thefeedback
was utilised to inform policy makers and ZERA
on the energy sector strategic requirements
and enabled the Authority to makean informed
review of its 5-year (2021-2025) Strategic Plan
and developproactive andtangible outcomesfor
2023.

1.2.6 FinanceandAdministration

The financial results for the year ended 31
December 2022 were achieved in a challenging
economic environment. Coupled with exchange
rate volatility the macroeconomic environment
continued to exhibit hyperinflationary traits,
thereby impacting on the Authority’s operations.
Year on year inflation increased from 24.9% in
2021 to 105.5% in 2022. However, the year saw
revenue increasingby 74%compared tothe prior
year. This helped keep the Authority afloat and
self-sufficient in its operations.

1.2.7 HumanResources

The call for adequate, skilled, and engaged
employees remainsas theAuthority experienced
skills flight during the year. –This affected some
departments, who however made strides to
cover thegaps enoughto attainour 100%target
as an organisation. We continue to engage all
stakeholders to ensure that working conditions
and remuneration are competitive enough to
retain our talented team, whilst attracting the
requisite skillset that is needed to achieve the
Authority’smandate.

1.2.8 CorporateSocial Responsibility

As partof its 10th anniversarycommemorations,
the Authorityheld its Inaugural GolfTournaments
in Harare and Bulawayo, whose proceeds were
channelled towards the Zimbabwe Albino
Association – Matabeleland North Chapter. The
Authority purchased skin care products which
were then handed over to the Minister of State,

Provincial Affairs and Devolution – Matabeleland
North, to further distribute the products to 194
people livingwith Albinism in the province.

The Authority also continued its quest to
contribute to the education of engineering
students by awarding prizes to the Best
Graduating students in the country’s tertiary
institutions.

1.2.9 Regional Engagement

Membership to the Regional Energy Regulators
Association of South Africa (RERA)
African Forum for Utility Regulators (AFUR) and
Regional Association of Energy Regulators for
Eastern and Southern Africa (REARESA) was
maintained to offer the Authority a platform to
engage with other regulators within the region.
Physical meetingsof theRERA resumedin the3rd
quarter of the year, with ZERA representatives
attending the Sub-Committee and portfolio
committeemeetings whichwere held in Eswatini.

The Authority also resumed physical attendance
to Regional Conferences such as the Africa
EnergyWeek to keep abreastwith developments
within the sectorat regional level.

1.2.10 Conclusion

Given thesterling organisationalperformance for
the year 2022, I am pleased to say we are on the
right path in ensuring the stability and growth of
the energy sector. With the potential offered by
the different forms of renewable energy, coupled
with the much-anticipated commissioning of
the Hwange Unit 7 and 8, the turbulence being
experienced in the electricity sub-sector, will
be a thing of the past. As the energy regulatory
authority, our goal remains toensure thatenergy
is available, accessible and affordable to every
Zimbabwean aswe forge towards vision2030.

________________________________
Mr.E. T.Mazambani
Chief Executive Officer

Chief Executive Officer’s Overview
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Mr. E. T.Mazambani
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BoardMembers

Dr.D.D.Madzikanda
BoardChairperson

Dr. Madzikanda is a strategic leader and an academic, focusing
on strategic management, change management and leadership.
He graduated with a Bachelor’s Degree in Electrical Engineering,
a Master of Business Administration (MBA) with a distinction and
a Doctor of Philosophy (PhD) in Strategic Management from the
University ofWales, in the United Kingdom. He has seventeen (17)
years of professional, regional, and international work experience
in theenergy sector, particularly in System DevelopmentPlanning
where he was involved in turning around the main Zimbabwean
power company. In addition, he has twenty (20) years’ experience
in the academia and consultancy work. He is the current Dean of
the Faculty of Business Management Sciences and Economics at
the University ofZimbabwe (UZ) providingthought leadership and
cutting-edge research. His research interests are in the areas of
Cultural Influences in Strategic Formulation and Implementation,
Strategic Performance Management, Corporate Governance and
Leadership.

Eng. F.Mavhiya-Bhiza
BoardViceChairperson

Aholder of a Bachelor of Technology (Honours) Degree in Electrical
Engineering and an ACCA Certified Diploma in Accounting and
Finance, Eng. Mavhiya-Bhiza is a registered member of the
Engineering Council of Zimbabwe (ECZ) where she once served as
the Chairperson and the Zimbabwe Institution of Engineers (ZIE)
where she is the current Deputy President. She is also the current
Chairperson of Women in Engineering, a division of ZIE which was
established to improve the visibility of women in the engineering,
innovation, science, and technology disciplines. In addition to
her engineering field, she is a certified Quality Assurance Lead
Auditor (ISO 9001:2015). She is the current Board Chairperson of
Harare Institute of Technology, a position which adds to her past
Board experiences at ZESA Holdings and the Higher Education
Examination Council (HEXCO). Furthermore, she is the current
Managing Director at Chisipo Consultants, a well-established
company specializing in the provision of construction engineering
services. Her vast experience spans to over twenty-eight (28) years
of servicein largescale engineeringprojects thatwere implemented
in different countries like Botswana,Zambia, Eswatini andMauritius.

Mrs.G.S.Chikwava
BoardMember

Mrs. Chikwava is a holder of an MSc in Strategic Management
from the University of Derby, UK, Institute of Bankers Diploma
(IOBZ), Executive Development Diploma attained from University
of Zimbabwe (UZ) and she is a member of the Zimbabwe Institute
of Management. She previously held directorship posts at FBC
Holdings Ltd as well as Zimbabwe Power Company. She is the
current Chairperson of the President’s Fund Trust. In addition, she
is a director of several other companies operating in the farming,
real estate, and manufacturing industries.
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Mr.M.Kambarami
BoardMember

Mr. Kambarami is a holder of a Bachelor of Sciences (BSc) and
an MBA in Finance and Accounting that were attained from the
Marist College,Poughkeepsie, NewYork, UnitedStates ofAmerica
(USA). He has energy industry experience of over twenty-five
(25) years that were characterized by holding key positions at
big organizations in the USA and South Africa. Mr. Kambarami’s
immense contributions to Zimbabwe’s energy industry include his
Chief Executive Officer (CEO) role at Chevron (Caltex) Zimbabwe
and his Chairperson posts at the PetroleumMarketers Association
of Zimbabwe (PMAZ) and the National Economic Consultative
Forum for the Energy Sector (NECFES). He also made equally
significant contributions to his accounting profession by taking
a lecturing post at Africa University in Mutare where he taught
Financial Planningand InvestmentAnalysis in the MBAclass.

Mrs. T.Madzivire
BoardMember

An expert in the insurance and risk fields, Mrs. Madzivire attained a
Bachelor ofCommerce Degree in Insurance andRiskManagement
from the National University of Science and Technology (NUST), a
Diploma in Insurance from ACII (UK) as well as an MBA from the
Eastern and Southern Africa Management Institute (ESAMI). She
has overtwenty-five (25)years ofboth localand regionalexperience
in the afore-said insurance andrisk fields,of which eleven (11) years
were at executive level. The said experience includes previous
Board positions at Renisdale Development Company together
with Hospitals and Prisons CareMinistries International. Lastly,her
current positions include being the Founder and CEO of Dynamic
Risk Solutions as well as a Board appointment at Stone Micro
Finance.

Dr. T.K.Ncube
BoardMember

Dr. Ncube is a financial and corporate governance specialist with
extensive executivemanagement experience. He holds a Bachelor
of Business Studies Honours Degree majoring in Accounting and
Finance from UZ and an MBA from NUST (National University
of Science and Technology. He also attained a Doctorate in
Business Administration from Binary University of Management
and Entrepreneurship of Malaysia in collaboration with Chinhoyi
University of Technology. He is a member of the Institute of
Chartered Governance and Accounting Institute in Zimbabwe.
Dr. Ncube is currently a Director of Telbot Enterprises (Pvt) Ltd, a
companywith interests in mining, energy, real estate and farming.
He is also Managing Consultant of MT Business Consulting Group.
He previously held senior executive positions in the mining,
manufacturing and financial service industries. He is a current and
previous Non-Executive Director of public and private companies
in Zimbabwe and South Africa.

BoardMembers
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Ms.S.Rufu
BoardMember

Ms. Rufu is a seasoned lawyer with experience in corporate,
mineral andenvironmental law.Currently, she is theLegalManager
and Company Secretary for Chemplex Corporation Limited. She
attained her Bachelor of Laws Degree from Rhodes University in
South Africa and a Master of Laws Degree in Corporate Law from
the University of South Africa (UNISA). In addition, she obtained a
Bachelor of Social Science Degreemajoring in industrial sociology
and legal theory from Rhodes University. She also has previous
experience in the private legal practice, having worked for a
Port Elizabeth-based law firm Rushmere Noach Attorneys. After
undertaking legal studies and private practice in South Africa, she
relocated back to Zimbabwewhere shesuccessfullyconverted her
law degrees with the Council forLegal Education beforeregistering
as a legal practitioner with the High Court of Zimbabwe.

Dr. S. Ziuku
BoardMember

Anon-executivemember ofthe Boardunder theemploy ofMoEPD
as the Director in the Energy Conservation and Renewable Energy
Department, Dr.Ziuku isa holderofa Bachelorof AppliedSciences
(Physics) Honours Degree attained fromNUST (National University
of Science and Technology), an MSc in Renewable Energy from
UZ (University of Zimbabwe, and aPhD from the Universityof Fort
Hare, South Africa. He is a member of the South African Institute
of Physics as well as the Council for Measurement and Verification
Professionals. He has also carried out significant consultancy,
academic and lecturing works in the fields of renewable energy,
energy efficiency and decentralized energy systems. To date,
he
has authored nine (9) peer-reviewed publications on the said areas
of specialty and presented at various national and international
conferences.

Mr.E. T.Mazambani
Chief ExecutiveOfficer
(EX OFFICIO BOARDMEMBER)

Edington Mazambani is a qualified and experienced Chartered
Accountant having completed his articles with Deloitte and
Touché. Edington’s wealth ofexperience spans over 31years in the
field of financial service, accountingand auditing havingworked for
various companiesboth inZimbabwe andthe DemocraticRepublic
of Congo in the manufacturing, construction, telecommunications,
mining and engineering sectors.

BoardMembers
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LearmoreNechitoro
SeniorManager

EconomicRegulation

MisheckSiyakatshana
TechnicalDirector

CharityMachimbidzofa
SeniorManager

MonitoringandEvaluation

NgoniRanga
Financeand

AdministrationDirector

RumbidzaiMusiyiwa
Headof InternalAudit

JacquelineMupamhanga
CorporateSecretary/

LegalAdvisor

EdingtonTMazambani
Chief ExecutiveOfficer

3.0 Executive
Management

ExecutiveManagement
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ZERAMandate

MandateandObjectives

ZERA derives its mandate from the Energy
Regulatory Authority Act [Chapter 13:23] of 2011
as read together with the Electricity Act [Chapter
13:19] of 2002, Petroleum Act [Chapter 13:22]
of 2006 and subsequent amendments and the
PetroleumAct [Chapter 13:22] of 2006

4.1FunctionsofZERA

The Zimbabwe Energy Regulatory Authority
(ZERA) is a body corporate established in terms
of the Energy Regulatory Authority Act [Chapter
13:23] of 2011. The Authority is mandated to
regulate the entire energy sector in Zimbabwe
in a fair, transparent, efficient, and cost-effective
manner for the benefit of the consumers and
energy suppliers.
The Electricity Act prescribes 18 functions
and powers of the Authority which have been
summarized as below:

• Regulation and licensing
• Research anddevelopment
• Toincrease accessandsecurityof energysupply
•Market Reform andCompetition
• Energy efficiency and Environmentalprotection
• Key Stakeholder Advisory

4.2STRATEGICPLANNING,
MONITORING&EVALUATION

2021 STRATEGIC PLAN IMPLEMENTATION
REVIEW AND 5 YEAR (2021-2025) STRATEGIC
PLAN FORMULATION

Under the guidance of the Public Service
Commission, the Authority conducted both
an interim and the budget year 2022 annual
workshops to review the Authority’s 2022
Strategic Plan implementation progress and

formulate its 2023 Strategic Plan in accordance
with the NationalDevelopmentStrategy 1 (NDS1)

Interim (January to May 2022) Strategic
Plan Implementation Review Workshop for
ProgrammesandSubProgrammes.

The Authority conducted a review workshop in
June 2022 whose objective was for its internal
stakeholders to assess the Programmes,
Sub-Programmes and overall organisational
performance progressagainst theset milestones
as at May 2022. The set goals and targets were
also revisited with a view to adjust the targets
where necessary. This was designed to alert the
Authority on strategy implementation areas that
needed to be attended to.

The interim workshop gave ZERA an insight
into the implementation gaps and challenges
as well as the particular bottlenecks to these
challenges and determined the immediate and
most effective measures to address them. The
identification of appropriatemitigatory measures
guided theimplementationofthe restof the2022
targets. ThisassistedZERA’sstrategic direction in
the attainment of itsmandate and missionand in
its contribution to the Nation’s Vision 2030 and
national priorities.

4.2.1 2022StrategicPlan
ImplementationReview

In termsof theNDS1, theAuthority’scontribution
to the energy sector falls under the sectorial
key result area of “Provision of improved
infrastructure and services”, the priority area
being “InfrastructureandUtilities”. AStakeholder
feedback Workshop was conducted in October
2022 immediately before the annual review
workshop to understand from stakeholders,
their needs, aspirations and expectations from

4.0 ZERA
Mandate
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the Regulator so that these could be considered
in the 2023 policy and strategy objectives
formulation process. The feedback was utilised
to inform policy makers and ZERA on the energy
sector strategic requirements and enabled the
Authority to make an informed review of its
5-year (2021-2025) Strategic Plan and develop
proactive and tangible outcomes for 2023.
Amongst other issues, Stakeholders highlighted
the need to continue to raise awareness and
spread information on efficient and safe energy
use to all corners of the country. This was

TheseoutcomesclearlyshowalignmentofZERA’s
strategic thrust with the Sectoral Outcomes,
which are;

1. Improved ServiceDelivery
2. Improved EnergySupply Capacity
3. ImprovedAccess toModern EnergyServices
4. Improved Energy Efficiency

incorporated into the Regulator’s strategy under
Programme 3, Stakeholder Engagement and
Advisory Services.

In accordance with the Government thrust of
Programme Based Budgeting (PBB), ZERA has,
since2021,beenimplementingitsactivitiesguided
by the Programme Performance Management
System and it has three programmes that
have been maintained since, with the following
outcomes:

4.2.3. OrganisationalOperations
Performance

During the year under review, the Authority
continued to focus on its strategic role of
energy regulation. ZERA’s annual organisational
performance index achievement for 2022 was
102% againsta set target of100%.

The performance was partly attributed to high
performing core business KPIs as outlined in
Table 2:

Policy and Administration

Energy Regulation

Stakeholder Engagement
and Advisory Services

• Improved institutional capacity

• Increased regulatory compliance

• Enhanced cost reflectivity of

energy prices

• Improved uptake of modern, renewable

energy and technological innovations

• Increased energy efficiency

• Improved stakeholder satisfaction

Support Services

Technical and Economic
Regulation

Consumer Services and
Communications

ProgrammeName

Table 1: ZERA Programmes

2023Outcomes Departments

ZERAMandate



A decade of sustainable service

1

New Section Heading

16

100DayCycleRapidResults InitiativeProjects

In line with Government’s thrust to expedite
strategic plan implementation of low hanging
fruit projects, ZERA continued to identify and roll
out RapidResults Initiatives.

These are:
i) PromotingServiceStationStandards -Phase1&2
ii) Donation to Zimbabwe Albino Association -
Matabeleland NorthChapter.

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

Fuel quality compliance to standards

Electricity transmission infrastructure
compliance to codes

Electricity distribution infrastructure compliance
to codes

Incentivized fuel prices processed

Stakeholder Satisfaction Index

Stakeholder Engagement and Advisory
Campaigns conducted

Resolution of Public Complaints

Research

98%

82%

75%

100%

60%

100%

84%

100%

99.3%

88%

78%

383%

73.78%

141%

91.04%

93%

+1.3%

+6%

+3%

+283%

+13.78%

+41%

+7.04%

-7%

KPIs

Table 2: Organisational Performance

Target Achievement Variance

ZERAMandate
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Corporate Governance Report

5.1. Introduction

The Authority’s governance framework supports
corporate governance best practice as outlined
in the Public Entities Corporate Governance Act
[Chapter 10:31] (PECOGA). TheBoardrecognizes
that it is accountable to its stakeholders for
good corporate governance and is therefore
committed to high standards of governance.
In an environment of increasing change and
complexity of regulation, the Board aims to
achieve a balance between the governance
expectations of its stakeholders.

The Authority has in place a continuous
development programme to ensure that the
Board keeps up to date with developments in
respect of corporate governance and regulatory
matters. The Board Members attended some
corporate governance refresher courses to
ensure that they kept up to date with relevant
developments. The Board also conducted tours

of the ZimbabwePower Company (ZPC)’sHarare
and Hwange Power Stations, some independent
power producer projects as well as the Zambian
Energy Regulatory Board. These tours were
beneficial as they provided an insight on the
infrastructural and operational issues affecting
the energy industry both nationally and within
the region.

In termsofPECOGA,theBoard is requiredtocarry
out an annual evaluation exercise to appraise its
performance both collectively and for individual
members. During the year under review, the
Board evaluation exercise was successfully
conducted under the facilitation of a Consultant.
The results of the evaluation were submitted to
theMinistry of Energy and Power Development.

5.2GovernanceStructure

The structure of the Board as of 31 December
2022was as follows:

5.0
Corporate
Governance
Report

BOARDOF DIRECTORS

HR &Governance
Committee

Petroleum
Gas Committee

RE andR&D
Committee

Risk Management
Committee

Electricity
Committee

Finance
Committee

Audit
Committee

Figure 1

The Structure of the Board
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5.2.1BoardofDirectors

Section 6(2) of the Energy Regulatory Authority
Act [Chapter 13:23] provides that the operations
of the Authority shall be controlled by a Board
of Directors comprising of individuals with
knowledge of, ability and experience in the
following:

a.Finance andadministration;
b.Electricity industry;
c.Petroleum industry;
d. Qualified to practice as a legal practitioner in
terms of the Legal Practitioners Act [Chapter
27:07]; and
e. Qualified to practice as an engineer in terms of
the Engineering Council Act [Chapter 27:22].

The Board’s skills matrix, qualifications, expertise,
and gender balance are in compliance with the
provisions ofPECOGA.

5.2.2BoardMeetings

The Board continued to conduct its meetings
through online platforms as the business
world was still recovering from the impact
of the Covid-19 pandemic. All the quarterly-
scheduled Board and Committee meetings were
successfully conducted during the year under
review. Special Board and Committee meetings
were also conducted to cater for urgent issues
that could not wait for the scheduled meetings.
In line with PECOGA, the Board also held a
meeting with the Honourable Minister of Energy
and Power Development to discuss pertinent
energy regulatory issues as well as the general
policy direction that the Government expects the
organisation to comply with.

5.2.3AnnualGeneralMeeting for 2022

An AGM was successfully conducted during
the year under review in line with the provisions
of section 33(3) of PECOGA. The Authority’s
key stakeholders which include the Ministry of
Energy and Power Development (MoEPD), the
Office of the President and Cabinet - Corporate
Governance Unit, the Accountant General and
the Auditor General were all represented at the
meeting. All the issues tabled before themeeting
were duly adopted.

5.3.3BoardCommittees

The Board established and delegated specific

roles and responsibilities to seven (7)Committees
to ensure the efficient discharge of the Board’s
mandate. The Committees assist the Board in
giving detailed attention to specific areas of
the Directors’ duties and responsibilities. The
Terms of Reference of each Committee are
approved by the Board and reviewed when
necessary. All Committees are chaired by non-
executive Directors of the Board with Executive
Management attending meetings upon
invitation. The Committees meet quarterly, and
special meetings are held as and when they are
necessary. The Board receives minutes of the
Committees, and the Committee Chairpersons
present the recommendations made by their
respective Committees for Board approval.
5.3.3.1 The Committees’ Key Responsibilities:

a.HumanResourcesandGovernanceCommittee

Ensures that the Authority discharges its
responsibility to attract, motivate, develop, and
retain the required staff competencies in line with
its Strategic Plan.

b. PetroleumandGasCommittee

Discharges the Board’s responsibilities with
regards the regulation of the petroleum and gas
sub-sectors in terms of the Energy Regulatory
Authority Act [Chapter 13:23] as well as the
Petroleum Act [Chapter 13:22].

c. Renewable Energy and Research and
Development Committee

Strategically drives the Authority’s promotion of
the uptakeof greensources ofenergywitha view
to maintain the cleanliness of the environment
and minimize the negative effects of climate
change. Unlockingof potential innewdiscoveries
of the energy industry is undertaken through
research and development as spearheaded and
overseen bythis Committee.

d. RiskManagementCommittee

Plays an oversight role in respect of the
Authority’s risk management policies and
practices. It ensures that the Authority’s risk
management frameworks are commensurate
with the organizational structure, risk profile, risk
appetite, complexity, activities, and size.
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e. ElectricityCommittee

Discharges the Board’s responsibilities with
regardstheregulationoftheelectricitysub-sector
in terms of the Energy Regulatory Authority Act,
2011 [Chapter 13:23] and the Electricity Act
[Chapter 13:19].

f. FinanceCommittee

Ensures that Management has created and
maintained an effective control environment

for financial management and procurement
processes in adherence with international
financial reporting standards, the Public Finance
Management Act [Chapter 22:19] and other
relevant statutes and standards.

g.Audit Committee

Ensures that Management has created and
maintained an effective environment for internal
control processes in line with PECOGA and other
Board-approved policiesand procedures.

Ms. S. Rufu *

Dr. D.
Madzikanda

Mrs. T.
Madzivire

Mr. M.
Kambarami *

Ms. S. Rufu

Mrs. G.
Chikwava

Dr. S. Ziuku *

Eng. F.
Mavhiya-
Bhiza

Mr. M.
Kambarami

Mrs. T.
Madzivire *

Dr. T.K.
Ncube

Mrs. G.
Chikwava

Eng. F.
Mavhiya-
Bhiza *

Dr. S. Ziuku

Dr. T.K.
Ncube

Ms. S. Rufu

Dr. T.K.
Ncube *

Mrs. T.
Madzivire

Eng. F.
Mavhiya-
Bhiza

Mrs. G.
Chikwava *

Dr. S. Ziuku

Mr. M.
Kambarami

Human
Resources &
Governance
Committee

Table 3: Board Committees

Petroleum
and Gas

Committee

Renewable
Energy &
Research &

Development
Committee

Risk
Management
Committee

Electricity
Committee

Finance
Committee

Audit
Committee

* CommitteeChairpersons



A decade of sustainable service

1

New Section Heading

20

Corporate Governance Report

Dr. D.D.
Madzikanda **

Eng.
F. Mavhiya
-Bhiza ***

Mrs. T.
Madzivire

Dr. T.K.Ncube

Mr. M.Kambarami

Ms. S.Rufu

Dr. S.Ziuku

Mrs. G.Chikwava

BOARD
MEMBER

Table 4: Board Members’ Attendance Register
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5.4 PROSECUTION AND LITIGATION
CASES

ProsecutionCases

In 2022, the Authority instituted ninety-six (96)
prosecution cases as it sought to enforce the
energy laws against non-compliant operators
in the energy industry. The cases involved the
following offences:

i.The saleofpetroleumproducts withouta licence
in contravention of the Petroleum Act [Chapter
13:22];
ii.The sale of contaminated fuel in contravention
of the Petroleum (Fuel Quality) Regulations, 2013
published in Statutory Instrument (SI) 23 of 2013;

iii.Failure to pay penalties as well as selling
banned lighting products in contravention of the
Electricity (Inefficient Lighting Products Ban and
Labelling) Regulations, 2017 published in SI 21 of
2017; and
iv.Failure to rectify an infrastructural condition
that exposes the public to electrical risk in
contravention of the Electricity (Public Safety)
Regulations, 2018 published in SI 177 of 2018.

Amongst the ninety-six (96) cases, eighty-
six (86) were finalized with fines ranging from
ZWL$2 000 to ZWL$200 000 being imposed by
the courts. The remaining ten (10) cases were
pending as at 31 December 2022. The Authority
will continue to engage both the Police and the
Public Prosecutors to ensure finalization of the
pending cases whose prospects of prompt set-
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down were negatively affected by court-roll
backlogs which arose from the Covid-19 induced
national lockdowns in 2020/2021.

5.5LitigationCases

The Authority handled four (4) new litigation
cases that were instituted in 2022. The cases
involved court applications challenging certain
regulatory decisions by the Authority. Three (3)
of the cases were pending at the courts as of 31
December 2022 whilst one (1) was finalized in
favour of the Authority.
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6.0 InternalAudit

6.1.1 Overview

Internal Audit provides independent, objective
assurance and consulting services over the
effectiveness of the Authority’s governance,
risk management, and control processes at all
levels on an ongoing basis. The original 2022

audit plan was affected by the unavailability of
the anticipated staff members. The plan was
therefore amendedduring thecourse of theyear.
Assurance Services.

The following assurance audits were completed
in 2022:

Employment, Recruitment
and Selection

Payroll Follow Up

ChangeManagement
Follow Up

Business Continuity Follow
Up

External Audit Follow Up

23

8

9

16

5

1.

1.

2.

3.

4.

20

4

2

3

1

2

3

7

11

4

1

1

-

2

-

Audit Engagement

Table 5: Assurance Audits

Audit Observations

Total High Risk MediumRisk Low Risk

Follow–UpAudit
Engagement

Total Implemented7Partially
Implemented

Not
implemented

Internal Audit
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6.1.2 ConsultingServices

Consulting services were provided to
management on various emerging issues during
the year. The following services were rendered:
• A review of the Amendments to the HR

Policy
• A review of the ICTStrategy andZERA

Magazine issue

6.1.3 StakeholderEngagement

In addition to the ongoing engagement
of management and staff through audit
engagements, Internal Audit participated in the

global May Month of Internal Audit Awareness
activities by giving staff Internal Audit awareness
winter jackets.

Stakeholders were involved in the annual internal
audit planning through the annual planning
stakeholder engagementprocess.

Internal Audit also had a meeting with the
ZERA Board in the absence of management.
The meeting discussed the role of Internal
Audit, achievements, challenges, and mutual
expectations. Updates on Governance Trends
were also submitted to the Board each quarter.

Figure2: Internal Audit regalia for the 2022 Internal AuditAwareness, awinter jacketwith theawareness inscription.

From left: T Mutizamhepo (Graphic Designer), J. Mailos (IT Officer) P. Matinhure (IT Administrator), M. Makundidze (Registry
Clerk), F.Siwadi (FinancialAnalyst)
Seated: P.Mkunyadze (ERDSecretary) Y.Govere (FinanceSecretary), G.Ngoma(Economist) L.Nyoni (CommunicationsOfficer)

Internal Audit
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Ruzawi Solar Park
(Private) Limited

Chatsworth
Energy (Private)
Limited

Moores Farming
(Private) Limited

Siyavuma (Private)
Limited

Infrastructure Fund
Zimbabwe
(Private) Limited

Ravensus (Private)
Limited

Bindura Solar
(Private) Limited

Tanganda Tea
Company Ltd -
Tingamira Estates

Tanganda Tea
Company Ltd -
Jersey Estates

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

Company/Investor

Table 6: New Applications

Site/
Power Station

Location Capacity
(MW)

Technology Offtaker

5

5

0.175

50

0.15

50

25

1.2

1.4

Marondera,
Mashonaland East

Gutu, Masvingo
Province

Mashonaland
West Province

Matabeleland
Province

Borrowdale,
Harare

Matabeleland
South Province

Mashonaland
Central Province

Manicaland
Province

Manicaland
Province

Solar PV

Solar PV

Solar PV

Solar PV

Solar PV

Solar PV

Solar PV

Solar PV

Solar PV

ZETDC

ZEDTC

Own
Consumption

ZEDTC

Own
Consumption

ZEDTC

ZEDTC

Own
Consumption

Own
Consumption

Ruzawi Solar Park
Ruzawi Road,
Marondera

Gutu Solar
Plant

Virginia Farm,
Dawerndale

Cyrene Farm,
Plumtree Road

First Mutual Park,
100 Borrowdale
Road, Harare

Kranspoort Farm,
Shangani, Insiza

Bosrand Farm,
Masuri Sana 2,
Bindura

Tingamira Estates,
Chipinge

Jersey Estates,
Chipinge

7.0 Operational
Report

This section presents a detailed account of the
Authority’s operationsunder eachoperational unit.
This includes thekey achievements andchallenges
encounteredby theAuthority during the year.

7.1ELECTRICITYSUB-SECTOR
REGULATION

7.1.2Newapplications for 2022

Eleven (11) new licence applications were
received in 2022 with total installed capacity of
177.925MW. Six (6) projects would feed into the
grid, one(1) project for captivepower andfour (4)
projects for own consumption. Ten (10) projects
are solar projects while one (1) project will be a
coal-fired power plant
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7.1.4Licenses issued in2022

The Authority processed applications for
generation licences and issued eighteen (18)
new licences in 2022 with total capacity of
79.56206MW. Out of the 18 generation licences,
four (4) are for generation to supply to captive
customers, twelve (12) to generate for own
consumptionandtwo(2) forselling to thenational
grid. The Authority has noted some trend that
companies are installing solar systems for own

consumption andalsobeing netmeteredto allow
them to bank excess power into the grid. There
is also the continued trend towards supplying
to captive customers as a way of managing risk.
Sixteen (16)projectsaresolar photovoltaicpower
plants while one is for a coal-fired thermal power
and one project is forcoal bed methanegas-fired
power plant.

Acacia Energy
(Private) Limited

TD Energy
(Private) Limited

Table 7: Licenses Amended

Licensee Name Power Station Date of Amendment7Nature of Amendment

1.

2.

Chipangayi RETPark-1
Solar Power Park

Norton Solar Plant

10th February
2022

7th June 2022

Amended to match
tenure of power
purchase agreement

Amended in line with
review of project
milestones

7.1.3 LicencesAmended

As part of monitoring progress in the
implementation of generation projects, one
licence for TD Energy (Private) Limited was
amendedtoaccommodatechangesencountered

in implementation. Another licence for Acacia
Energy (Private) Limited was amended to in
response toa requestby the licensee.

MaxMind
Investments
(Zimbabwe) P/L

Lafrica Energy
(Private) Limited

10.

11.

15

25

177.925

Manicaland
Province

Matabeleland
North Province

Coal-fired
Thermal

Solar PV

Captive
Power

ZEDTC

Mukwasi Village,
Buhera District

Kalisine,
NekatambeWard,
Hwange
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1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

COMPANY/
INVESTOR

Table 8: Projects licensed in 2022

DATE
OF

LICENSING

VALID
FOR

(YEARS)

STAGE
OF

DEVELOPMENT
OFFTAKER

Solar PV

Solar PV

CBM gas

Coal-fired
Thermal

Solar PV

Solar PV

Solar PV

Solar PV

Solar PV

Solar PV

Solar PV

Solar PV

Solar PV

Solar PV

Solar PV

Solar PV

Solar PV

Solar PV

Captive
Power

Captive
Power

Captive
Power

Captive
Power

Own
Consumption

Own
Consumption

Own
Consumption

Own
Consumption

Own
Consumption

Own
Consumption

Own
Consumption

Own
Consumption

Own
Consumption

Own
Consumption

Own
Consumption

Own
Consumption

ZETDC

ZETDC

TECHNOLOGYPROJECT
LOCATION

CAPACITY
MW

SITE/
POWER
STATION

25

25

25

25

25

25

25

25

25

25

25

25

25

25

25

25

25

25

12

20.8

5

15

0.14

0.5

0.105

0.10176

0.1089

0.1184

0.117

0.564

0.382

1.8

0.175

0.15

12

10.5

Project
Development

Project
Development

Project
Development

Project
Development

Commissioning

Operational

Operational

Operational

Operational

Operational

Operational

Operational

Commissioning

Operational

Project
Development

Operational

Project
Development

Project
Development

Total

Centrawest
(Private) Ltd

Centrawest
(Private) Ltd

Lubimbi
Power &Gas
(Private) Ltd

Max Mind
Investments
(Zimbabwe)

Medicines
Control Authority
of Zimbabwe

Rift Valley
Properties
(Pvt) Limited

Econet Wireless
Zimbabwe Ltd

Econet Wireless
Zimbabwe Ltd

Econet Wireless
Zimbabwe Ltd

Luxaflor Roses
P/L

MD DeChassart
& Son P/L t/a
Surrey Abbatoir

Schweppes
Zimbabwe Ltd

Domervale
(Private) Ltd

Tanganda Tea
Company Ltd

Moores Farming
(Private) Ltd

Infrastructure
Fund Zimbabwe
(Private) Ltd

CDF Resources
(Private) Ltd

Afrobliss
Energy

Centrawest
Bulawayo
Solar Plant

Centrawest
Colleen Bawn
Solar Plant

Lubimbi
Power Plant

Max Mind
Coal PowerPlant

Medicines
Control Authority
of Zimbabwe
Solar Plant

Bay 11
Solar Plant

Econet Msasa
Solar Plant

Econet
Graniteside
Solar Plant

Econet
Mutare

Solar Plant

Luxaflor Roses
Solar Plant

Surrey Abbatoir
Solar Plant

Schweppes
BBJ Factory
Solar Plant

Domervale
Farm SolarPlant

Tanganda
Ratelshoek

Moores Farming
Solar Plant

First Mutual
Park Borrowdale
Solar Plant

EMD Power
Plant

Afrobliss Energy
Solar PowerPlant

10/2/22

10/2/22

25/7/22

16/12/20

6/1/22

25/1/22

25/1/22

25/1/22

25/1/22

25/1/22

25/1/22

25/1/22

7/4/22

4/10/22

4/10/22

4/10/22

3/8/22

4/10/22

79.56206

Farm 1of
Willsgrove

Bulawayo District

Copthal Block2
Gwanda District

Lubimbi
Coalfields Area
Lupane District

Mukwasi Village,
Buhera

106 Baines
Avenue, Harare

5 PaisleyRoad,
Southerton,
Harare

2 OldMutare
Road, Msasa,

Harare

13426 Corner
Kelvin Road,
Southerton,

Harare

Econet Mutare
Base Station
30 Chimoio
Street, Mutare

Manyewe
North Farm,
Concession,

Mazowe District

Surrey
Farm, Bromley,
Marondera

Schweppes
Mazunga Estates,

Beitbridge

Dormervale
Estate,

Marondera
District

Ratelshoek
Estates,

Chipinge District

Virginia Farm,
Darwendale
Mash West

First MutualPark,
100 Borrowdale

Park

Farm 274,
Zviyambe
Mash East

Southlawn Farm,
Marondera
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ZETDC

Captive Power

Own Consumption

Table 9: Table of off takers in 2022

Offtaker Numbers Capacities in MW

2

4

12

22.5

52.8

4.26206

79.5620618

Table 10

7.1.5Transfer ofShareholding

ZERA approved the application for transfer of
80%shareholdingfromRusituPowerCorporation
to Penhalonga Energy in termsof section 45(1) of
the ElectricityAct (Chapter13:19).

7.1.6 Licenses cancelled.

The Authority considered cancellation of four
licences fornon-performance andfailure tomeet
licence conditions.

7.1.7 LicenceApplicationwith
Objections

There were no objections raised on the licence
applications processedduring thecourse of2022.

7.1.8ElectricityTariffs

In line with the Electricity Act, the Authority
continued to implement tariff adjustments
emanating from the movement in exchange
rate and inflation to ensure that the approved
tariff level of USc10.63/kWh is preserved.
The objective was to ensure that the Utility’s
financial performance is not affected, resulting in
improvement in service delivery. To achieve this
objective, the following tariff adjustments were
implemented in 2022:

January 2022

May 2022

August 2022

September 2022

October 2022

Table 10: Tariff Adjustments in 2022

Date %Adjustment US$ Equivalent ZWL Equivalent

12.3%

21.8%

35%

38.5%

21.6%

USC 10.63/kWh

USC 10.63/kWh

USC 10.63/kWh

USC 10.63/kWh

USC 10.63/kWh

ZWLc9.212/kWh

ZWLc2.929/kWh

ZWLc3.956/kWh

ZWLc5.478/kWh

ZWLc6.663/kWh
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Q1

Q2

Q3

Q4

Table 11: Power Purchase Agreements

Dispatch (ltrs)
to blending

-

-

Matshela Energy

Parvalue Energy

TokweMukosi

EPCA South

Indo Africa

CorezimMining

Mvura Dam

Nyakupinga Power Station

Pelshong Investments

Pito Investments

Yellow Africa

QUARTER
NAMEOF
LICENSEE

TECHNOLOGY CAPACITY

-

-

Solar PV

Solar PV

Hydro

Solar PV

Solar PV

Solar PV

Hydro

Hydro

Hydro

Solar PV

Solar PV

-

-

100MW

50MW

15MW

5MW

10MW

20.6 MW

0.6 MW

O.6 MW

1.0 MW

25MW

50MW

In accordancewith section53(6) of theElectricity
Act, the Authority received and approved the
following Power Purchase Agreements (PPAs)

7.2DEVELOPMENTOFTHE
REGULATORYFRAMEWORK&
ENVIRONMENT

7.2.1 IncreasedAccess (plans,
policies and frameworks)

a) National Electric Mobility Policy and Market
ReadinessFramework forZimbabwe

The Authority took an active role in the
development of the National Electric Mobility
Policy and Market Readiness Framework for
Zimbabwe by the Ministry of Energy and Power
Development.

The Policy Framework will assist in introduction
of electric mobility in Zimbabwe and address
various barriers to its scale up.

The Policy is expected to be published in 2023.

between Independent Power Producers (IPPs)
and the Zimbabwe Electricity Transmission and
Distribution Company (ZETDC):

b)EnergyEfficiencyPolicy

The Authority participated in the development of
the National Energy Efficiency Policy by Ministry
of Energy and Power Development. Through
various strategies, the policy seeks to unlock
potential energy savings which were estimated
at 18% of total consumption during a National
Efficiency Audit conducted in 2015.

This policy has set a target to improve energy
efficiency by 70% by 2030 using the 2015
baseline.
The policy also advocates for the following
initiatives andprograms amongothers:
- Minimum Energy Performance Standards
(MEPs)
-Mandatory Energy Efficiency Audits and Energy
Management Systems (EnMS)
- ApplianceLabelling Requirements
- Energy Efficiency SchoolCurricula
- Energy Efficiency Certificationsystem
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1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

Table 11 b: Distribution Compliance Audits

No. Depot Overall Compliance

77%

74%

77%

75%

77%

85%

73%

69%

76%

Borrowdale

Kuwadzana

Victoria Falls

Kwekwe

Redcliff

Masvingo

Mutare

Karoi

Average compliance Rate (%)

- Development of ESCOs
- Energy Efficiency Capacitybuilding initiatives
- Development of Energy Efficiency Statistics and
Indicators

The Policy is expected to be published in 2023.

7.2.2 Ensuring Safety, Reliability and
QualityofSupply

7.2.2.1RegulationsandCodes

The Authority developed the following
regulations/code and standards during the year.
a) ZWS400:2006 Electrical wiring of premises
standard (revision) - TheAuthority facilitated the
reviewofZWS400:2006Electricalwiringofpremises
standard following stakeholder consultations. The
followingamendmentsweremade;

i)mandatory use of residual current devices
ii) standards for grid connected solar pv
installations
iii) requirements for EV charging installations at
premises,
iv)wiring standardsafter themeter

The amendments in i) and iv) were initiated
to mitigate numerous recorded accidents in
consumer premises arising from poor wiring
connections after the meter.

b) Generation Code – has been developed in
order to ensure efficient coordinated operation,
and maintenance of the electricity generation
systemunder the dynamic environment.

The objective of the generation code is
to establish the basic rules, procedures,
requirements, and standards that govern the
operation, maintenance, of generation plants
in Zimbabwe to ensure the safe, reliable, and
efficient operation.

c)ThirdPartyAccessCode – this code allows for
grid access by third parties in non-discriminate
and equitablemanner. Thecodewas initiated asa
result of a requirement in the Renewable Energy
Policy which seeks to increase the contribution
by IPPsby promoting investment.

7.2.2.2DistributionComplianceAudits

The Authority carried out thirty-eight distribution
infrastructure audits throughout the year. The
focus was following up on progress made to
the 2021 Risk audit reports recommendations
submitted by the utility as well as compliance
based on the distribution code requirements.
The Distribution Code requirements were limited
to operational requirements at depot level. The
overall compliance levels were76%.
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Grid InfrastructureAudits

The Authority carried out grid infrastructure
audits on the transmission and sub-transmission
network. The focus was following up on progress
made to the 2021 Grid Code audit report
recommendations. A progress appreciation visit
was also carried out at the new Sherwood B
330kV substation.

7.2.2.3CustomerSupplied
PrepaymentMeterScheme

TheAuthoritycontinuestoadministerthescheme
with 39,822 meters imported and 32,611 meters
sold during the year among the 23 registered
agents.
The Authoritymandated ZETDC tocompetitively
procure additional Original Equipment
Manufacturers (OEM’s) whilst at the same time
delisting OEMs with a low market share in order
to safeguard against collusion by original meter
manufacturers.

7.2.2.4PromotionofRenewableEnergy

7.2.2.5RegulationsandCodes
The followingwas done during the year;

Grid Code follow-up checks were based on non-
compliances thatwere notedduring the last audit
carried out in 2020 except forWarren 330kV and
Gwanda 132kV that were not assessed in 2020.

a)SolarProductsRegulations

The Regulations seek to curb the influx of
substandard solar products on the local market.
The draft Solar Products Regulations were
submitted toMOEPD for promulgation.

The implementation of the solar products
regulations once they are promulgated is
envisaged to ensure quality of products in the
market. Products to be monitored under these
regulations include solar PV panels, inverters,
batteries, solar water heaters, pico-solar
products, andsolar home systemkits.

However, this effort has been hamstrung
by shortcomings in the Electricity Act which
impede promulgation of the same. The Act will
be subjected to review in 2023 to address such
shortcomings.

Table 12

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

Table 12: Grid Infrastructure Compliance Levels Audits

Not Assessed

83%

91.3%

83%

Not Assessed

83%

83%

Warren

Marvel

Insukamini

Hwange

Gwanda

Sherwood

Haven

Average Compliance Rate (%)

No. Depot
New

Compliance
Level

Previous
Compliance

Level

74%

96%

86.96%

91%

91.3%

91%

83%

88%
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Table 13: Status of Netmetering uptake as of 31 December 2022

Status
of

Application
Number Capacity (kW)

Average Turn
around period (days)
fromApplication

Commisioned

Awaiting
Commissioning

Awaiting Meter
Installation

Stores Requisition
in Progress

Awaiting ENM2
Payment

Awaiting
Network Studies

Exception

Total Applications

123

2

1

6

43

7

1

183

141

407

679

0

40

192

161

4,981

650

3

298

3,607.8

3,079.3

12,619.1

b)RooftopSolarPV InstallationGuidelines
These guidelines were developed to improve
safety and standardized quality of rooftop solar
PV installations following the upsurge in same.
The guidelines are expected to be published in
2023.

7.2.3.6NetMetering

The Authority continues tomonitor and promote

7.2.3.7SolarWaterHeater Installers
Training

The Authority commissioned solar water heater
installations training for the year 2022 with the
following keyobjectives:
a) To build local capacity for quality design,
installation, testing, commissioning, handover,
servicing, and fault finding of solar thermal hot
water systems in the country
b) To improve SWH design, installation and
maintenance/repair in the country design,
installation, testing, commissioning, handover,
servicing, and fault finding of solar thermal hot
water systems
c) To increase the uptake of SWH systems in the
country

the uptake of Net Metering in the country.
Countrywide workshops have been planned
for 2023 to further raise awareness and stir
interest to prospective participants and funders.
Net Metering is an important scheme to help
in the uptake of small-scale renewable energy
generation as the energy transition continues.

Table below depicts the uptake status as shown
below: -

The training targeted people with a technical
background preferably plumbing who are
working for companies that design, install, and
distribute SolarWater Heaters inZimbabwe.

The Authority conducted five trainingworkshops
inHarare,Gweru,Bulawayo,MutareandMasvingo
respectively as shown in the table below. The
training was conducted in partnership with
SIRDC and the Southern African Solar Thermal
Training & Demonstration Initiative (SOLTRAIN)
which is a regional initiative on capacity building
& demonstration of solar thermal systems
in the SADC region. SOLTRAIN availed the
demonstration trailerat theZERA trainingvenues
to complement thepractical sessions.
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Table 14: SWH Training Update

4

3

1

4

4

16

Harare

Bulawayo

Masvingo

Mutare

Gweru

Total

Venue Number of
Participants

Pass
Rate

Number of Women
Participants

71%

82%

80%

79%

90%
Average =

80%

24

33

25

33

31

147

Training Dates

25 - 29 July 2022

29 August - 2 Sept 2022

10 - 14 October 2022

21-25 November 2022

12 - 16 December 2022

7.2.3.8 Biomass Resource Assessment
Study

TheNational Renewable Energy Policy (2019) set
a target of 275MW renewable energy electricity
to be generated from Biomass or Bagasse.
Currently there is only one wood waste biomass
cogeneration power plant at Charter Sawmill
(0.5MW) in Chimanimani area. The Authority has
therefore initiated a biomass energy resource
assessment for Zimbabwe in fulfilment of the
target.

The study aims to quantify the biomass resource
potential with a view to promote and upscale
development of biomass projects in Zimbabwe.
The information obtained from the study will be
shared to potential developers and investors in
the biomass energy sector.

An independent consultant was selected
to undertake the assignment at a cost of
US$42,000.00 whichisexpectedto becompeted

in Q2 2023.
7.2.3.9 Rural Health Centres Solar PV/
ThermalCSR Installations

The Authority initiated installation of solar PV
and thermal systems at two rural health centres
as provided for by the Ministry of Health and
Child Care for solarisation as part of its Corporate
Social Responsibility as well as renewable
energy demonstration projects for marginalised
communities. GamanyaClinic inMakonde District
of Mashonaland West Province and Chirogwe
Clinic in Chivi District of Masvingo Province were
nominated as beneficiaries.

A competitive tender was advertised in the
press to procure contractors to implement the
projects. SINET Africa was the successful bidder
for the tenders and was awarded the contract
to do both projects. The implementation of the
projects is expected to commence in the first
quarter of 2023
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7.2.4RESEARCHAND
DEVELOPMENT

7.2.4.1Call forResearchProposals 2022

The Authority commissioned the Research
Council of Zimbabwe (RCZ) to issue a “Call for
Proposals for Research in Energy Production,
Storage and Delivery. The focus of the Call was
to seek innovative solutions to improve reliability

Figure3:The twoClinics tobe solarized

Chirogwe Clinic - ChiviDistrict Gamanya Clinic - MakondeDistrict

in the generation, transmission, distribution, and
supply of modern energy and develop heritage-
based knowledge in the energy research area. A
total of14 proposalswere received in responseto
the call and were whittled down to three (Table1)
projects thatwere thenapprovedfor fundingat a
total cost of US$222,362.60.
The Authority disbursed a total of $115,522.50
through RCZ towards first phase implementation
of the projects as indicated in table 15 below:

120,973.60

20,000.00

81,389.00

222,362.60

1.

2.

3.

Table 15: Projects First PhaseDisbursements made

No. 2022 Call for Proposals
- R&D Project Title

Project
Amount (USD)

Investigation of water tube boiler failure and
water chemistry at Zimbabwe Power
Company Coal Fired Power Plants –
Case Study of Hwange Power Plant (UZ)

Laboratory Scale Manufacture of Lithium
CathodeMaterials for Heritage Based
development of High Energy Density
Lithium-Ion and Lithium-
Air Batteries in Zimbabwe (Verify Engineering)

Carry out Power Density andDurability
Assessment of Locally Manufactured
Batteries (UZ)

Total

72,272.50

14,650.00

28, 600.00

115,522.50

First Phase
Disbursement Made
(Paid at Bank Rate)
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The Authority has been monitoring the delivery
of first phase projects milestones as guided by
the project grant agreements. The second phase
disbursements to be done once the first phase
deliverables have been produced. The 2023
Call for Proposals was published and advertised
during Q4of 2022.

7.2.4.2 Jatropha Multi-Purpose Plant
(US$70,000)

In 2014, the Harare Institute of Technology
submitted a proposal for investigating the
possibility of designing a plant that could self
sustainably generate electricity, produce bio-
diesel, glycerine, and stock feed from Jatropha
and on amobile platform.

Themobiledieselplantisabout75%completewith
the finalstages involvingoil pressfilter installation,
raw material collection, and integration of the
various components including the automation
control unit are the major remaining aspects to
be donebefore a test run.

The Authority disbursed US $8,564.14 which
was requested by the institution to procure the
outstanding equipment and bring the project to
completion. The institution is now in the process
of procuring the equipment and materials
required tocomplete theproject.

7.2.4.3MediumTemperatureSolarThermal
Technology (US$48,235.00)

In 2020, the Authority accepted for funding a
proposal submited by Chinhoyi University of
Technology (CUT) for designing and developing
medium temperature solar thermal technology
potentially suitable for heating processes in,
mainlythefoodprocessingindustries,thatrequire
operating temperatures not exceeding 1500C.
The proposed technology could be configured
to provide preheating and economization for
processes requiring highertemperatures thereby
significantly saving energy.

The second phase, which involves the prototype
development of medium temperature solar
thermal technology was completed. The
prototype developed is a heat generator which
uses borosilicate evacuated tubes witha counter
flow absorber, a stationery reflector and an
advanced header design. Laboratory tests were
carriedouttotest itsheatgenerationcapacity(the
attainable maximum temperature, flowrate and
pressure). The advanced medium temperature
solar thermal technology has three main novel
characteristics, which are counter-flow copper
absorber, a semi-circle stationary reflector and a
compartment-based headerdesign.
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The first phase results indicate that the system
has high heat gain capacityat increased flowrates
as compared to the heat pipe evacuated tube
collector (currently available on themarket). The
temperature gain depends on the flowrate and
is subject to the number of systems connected
in series or parallel. The prototype has a major
advantage ofreducing thenumber ofborosilicate
evacuated tubes which are imported. All the
components can be easily fabricated locally, and
no heat transfer fluid was required which makes
the system simple and easy to manufacture
locally. The next step (third phase) required is
to fabricate the advanced prototype, make the
required series-parallel connections and retrofit
to a real foodprocessing system.
The Authority has disbursed funds to facilitate
implementation of the project third phase, that is
fabrication of the advancedprototypewhichshall
be used for live industrial process applications.
The project is expected to be completed in 2023.

7.2.5 Promotion of Energy Efficiency
RegulationsandCodes

a)GreenBuildingCode

The Authority initiated development of a Green
Building Code which seeks to improve the
efficiency of building performance by adopting
measures that promote resource management
efficiency and site sustainability while minimizing
the negative impactof buildings onhuman health
and the environment. The Code proposes a

set of standards which apply to efficient use of
resources, operationandmaintenance.

b) Review of Inefficient Lighting Regulations
andLabellingRegulations

The Authority sought to repeal Statutory
Instrument 21 of 2017 and 208 of 2018 and
replace themwith anew Statutory Instrument.

The review and subsequent repeal of the
Regulations wasdue to;
i. Operational Challenges – the Authority has
faced several challenges in implementing the
SI including lawsuits. The replacement will
enhance the monitoring and enforcement of
the regulations by ZRP on prohibited lighting
products. It will also outline the responsibility
of exhibits safekeeping after seizure and
penalization of repeat offenders.
ii. Incorporation of SADC harmonized Minimum
Energy Performance Standards (MEPS) for
general service lamps– these guidelinesprovidea
comprehensive lighting product exemptions and
separation of labelling requirements for lighting
products andpackaging.
iii. Upward Review of fines- The current fines
have been eroded by inflation and are no
longer deterrent in the trading of the prohibited
inefficient lighting products.

Promulgation of the reviewed Regulationsawaits
the review of the Electricity Act to pave way for
the same.

Figure4:Project Prototypedeveloped.
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7.2.5.1Capacitation

The Authority procured portable lighting product
testing equipment to capacitate staff in field
testing. This has contributed to an increase in the
number of inspections over the previousyear.

7.2.5.2EnergyEfficiencyProjects

a) LED lightingRetrofit.

The Authority funded the LED Retrofit project
at Chinhoyi Provincial Hospital to reduce the
electricity use by lighting systems thereby
reducing the energy cost at the hospital. The
retrofit is projected to reduce electrical load
contributed by lighting systems by over 50%.

b)Gweru Petrotrade Electric Vehicle Charger
The Authority partnered Petrotrade to install a
charger at the Gweru Service Station. This will
bring the total number of EV chargers installed
by the Authority to 4 after Mutare, Harare and
Bulawayo. The project isexpected to increase the
adoption of e-mobility in Zimbabwe and will be
operational byQ2 2023.Moreprojects havebeen
budgeted for in 2023

7.2.5.3EnergyEfficiencyTrainings

Fifty-two (52) candidates in Harare and Bulawayo
were trained as Certified Energy Managers as a
drive to capacitate the industry. The Certified
Energy Manager (CEM) trainingwaswiththe view
to:

i. Build local capacity for energy efficiency and
energy management,
ii. Build a critical mass for trained and Certified
Energy Managers in the Country in preparation
for the implementation of the drafted Energy
Management Regulation.
iii. Increase and improve the uptake of Energy
Efficiency and Energy Management.
The pass rate averaged70%.

7.2.5.4CSRProjectAssessment

TheCorporateSocialResponsibility(CSR)projects
were visited for assessmentand evaluation of the
LED light retrofits and solargeysers initiatives the

Authority sponsored between 2015 and 2016.
The findings are as follows;

a)MatthewRusikeChildren’sHome
Only twenty-one (21) LED lighting bulbs have
been changed in the past 7 years from a total of
106. The replacements started in August 2021,
showing that the bulbs had lasted more than 5
years in use whilst reduction in energy bill was
noted.

b)MashambanzouCareTrust

Three (3) out of forty-three(43) LED tubes had
been replaced by mid-2022, whilst 19 LED bulbs
were replaced out of ninety-eight (98) installed.
The solar geysers were installed without backup
elements, and the Authority did not attend to the
raised issue.One (1)out of eight (8) installedsolar
geysers has completely shut down, whilst the
rest were still working but with limited hot water
retention capacity.

c)ChinyaradzoChildren’sHome

TheHomewas retrofittedwith 150spiral compact
fluorescent lamps (CFL) in 2015 and lasted for
more than 4 years with the replacements only
starting inFebruary 2019.The useof CFLresulted
in lowering of the energy bill and budget of light
bulb replacement.

7.2.6. Compliance and enforcement of
regulatory framework

The Authority carried out 4,046 inspections,
with a compliance rate of 85.66% as compared
to 81.89%. 0.63MW of both inefficient and sub-
standards lighting products were seized from the
market, representing a 53% drop in inefficient
and sub-standards lighting products seized
from the market. The megawatt equivalent of
destroyed inefficient and sub-standards lighting
productsdroppedby91%from1.52MWin2021to
0.14MW in 2022. A total of 283 fineswere issued,
amounting toZWL 20,321,768.40.ZIMRA started
checking all imports for compliance to standards
and thishas helped improve compliance levels.
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Retailers Inspected

Product Lines tested

Non-comp Retailers

NC%

Fined Retailers

Amount Fines

kWSeized

kWDestroyed

Table 16: Compliance and Enforcement regulatory framework

4,046

256

580

14.34

283

20,321,768.40

628.23

143.97

Description 2022 %Change2021

1,038

1,005

188

18.11

173

123,748.40

1,339.53

1,515.63

290%

-75%

209%

-21%

64%

16,332%

-53%

-91%

Two hundred and eigth (208) lighting products
were verified on the Integrating Sphere, one
hundred andtwentyseven(127) ofproductswere
compliant and resultantly registered tobe sold in
Zimbabwe. Eighty-one (81) of the non-compliant
products failed to meet the labelling criteria,
electrical andphotometric requirements.

The majority of the light products fell in the 5W
to 25W range which are mainly general service
lamps, product below 5W constituted 31.73%
whilst products above 25W constituted 12.50%.

7.2.7 ElectricitySub-Sector
ProsecutionCases

7.2.7.1Prosecution

Seven (7) electrical accidents cases were filed at
various Police stations countrywide. The cases
included five5 fataland two(2) non-fatalelectrical
accidents. The cases are to be carried over into
2023. The preferred charges were in accordance
with the Electricity (Public Safety) Regulations,
Statutory Instrument177 of2018.
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1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

Table 17: Electricity Accidents Reported

Chegutu Central

Kadoma Rural

Gokwe

Gokwe

Hillside (Bulawayo)

Musami

Karoi Rural

NO. ZRP Station
Reported

CircumstanceAccident Status

Non-fatal

Fatal

Fatal

Non-Fatal

Fatal

Fatal

Fatal

Infrastructure collapse. The victim made
contact with a low-lying live contact.

Infrastructure collapse. The victim made
contact with a low-lying live contact.

Lack of wayleave clearance. The victim
made contact with a live conductor with
a wet stick in the process of plucking fruits.

Infrastructure collapse. The victim made
contact with a low-lying live contact.

Infrastructure collapse. The victim made
contact with a low-lying live contact.

Lack of maintenance. The victimwas
electrocuted due to a sustained lightning
on the HV line.

Infrastructure collapse. The victim made
contact with a low-lying live contact.

The cases emanated from negligent behaviour
on the part the power utility and its employees
as well as lack of awareness on electrical safety
in rural areas.

7.2.7.2ZETDCCompensation

A total of ZWL$80,664,972.00 was paid out
to twenty-six (26) claimants in 2022. ZETDC is
however citing funding challenges for not being
able tocompensate all claims lodged.

7.3. PETROLEUMSUB-SECTOR
REGULATION

7.3.1 LicensedPetroleumCompanies

In the period January to December 2022, the
Authority licensed petroleumsector operatorsas
shown inFigure 5.
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The total number of licensees increased over the
years since inception with the most significant
change being attributed to the retail licensees,
which rose from 229 in the year 2012 to 905 in
the year 2022. The 2022 licensing year recorded
the highest number of licenses issued in ZERA’s
ten-year history.

7.3.2Geographical Information
Systems

The Authority continues to utilise Geographical
InformationSystems(GIS)toenhancecompliance
enforcementandincreasestakeholderawareness
on the geographical positions of energy facilities
in the country. To further increase the efficiency

and effectivenessof thesystem, workis underway
to integrate GIS and SAP system.

7.3.2.1Sites licensed in2022

The GIS system in the petroleum sector is
capturing all information with regards to the
physical positions of retail sites in the ZERA
licensing database.A totalof 881petroleum retail
sites (i.e. 631 urban and 250 rural) were licensed
in 2022. The year 2022 has thus shown a 4%
increase in the licensed retail sites in the country
as compared to those licensed in 2021. The map
below depicts all retail sites licensed in the year
2022.

Figure5: Petroleum Licensing Statistics, 2012– 2022

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

5

11

18

16

15

10

11

11

10

11

11

16

6

7

6

7

2

3

7

18

26

18

48

39

32

31

36

40

63

130

10

69

69

229

411

496

595

569

609

638

709

733

882

905

1

2

4

4

3

4

2

1

1

1

1

299

469

557

651

630

665

717

858

772

989

1004

License Category

Year Retail Procurement6Wholesale Blending Production Total

Figure 5

Petroleum Licensing
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7.3.2.2Production sites licensed in2022
Themap below shows the location of companies
licensed to produce ethanol and those licensed
for blending of ethanol with unleaded petrol.

7.3.2.3Newpetroleumretail sites
The GIS database keeps an up to date data set
of new licensed sites at any given time. Themap
below indicates the distribution of new sites
licensed in each province in 2022.

Figure6:Petroleum licensedretail sites in 2022

Figure 7:Petroleum licensedblending sites in 2022
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7.3.2.3Newpetroleumretail sites

The GIS database keeps an up to date data set of new licensed sites at any given time. Themap below
indicates thedistribution ofnew sites licensed ineach province in 2022.

7.3.2.4Distributionofpetroleumretail sites atProvincial level

Themap below shows the distribution of retail sites in the country. A higher concentration is evident
from theprovinces withmore urbancentres ascompared to those withmore rural centres.

Figure9:Distribution of the licensedretail sites in eachprovince

Figure9:Distribution of the licensedretail sites in eachprovince
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Bulawayo10%

Matebeleland
South3%

Matebeleland
North3%

Harare31%

Masvingo 7%

Manicaland9%

Mashonaland12%

Mashonaland
Central 5%

Mashonaland
East 9%

Midlands9%

License
Category

Table 18: Number of Licensed LPG operators, 2015 to 2022

2022

Retail

Wholesale

Total

39

14

53

2021202020192018201720162015

YEAR

80

17

97

110

16

126

135

17

152

125

13

138

158

23

181

356

18

374

325

29

354

Harare contributes 31% of all the licensed retail
sites in the country, whilst Bulawayo contributes
10%. Matabeleland north has theminimum sites

in the country with a 3% contribution. Figure 9
illustrates thedistributionsummaryfor therestof
the provinces in the country.

7.3.3 LPGLicenses

The table below shows that the number of
licensed LPG operators have increased over the
period 2015and 2022.

Figure 10

Distribution of the licensedretail sites in eachprovince
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Figure 11

Fuel retail sites inspected from 2020 to 2022

7.3.4Compliance level/trends

The Authority ensures that there is a complete
compliance in the petroleum sector through
scheduled field compliance visits to all provinces
in the country. Petroleum licensing enforcement
wasdone inall the10provinceswithacompliance
rate of 97%being achieved by December 2022.

Pricing surveysare donecountrywide onaweekly
basis for both liquid fuel and LPG to ensure
compliance to the Authority’s prescribed prices.
four (4) cases of over pricing were filed with the
Police for prosecution during 2022 trading year.

7.3.5. Prosecutionand litigation

During the period January to December 2022, a
total of 149 cases for liquid fuels and LPG were
filed with the Police and prosecuted as shown
below:
- Operating without valid ZERA licenses – 145
retail sites
- Charging above the Authority’s prescribed
prices – 4 retail sites

There was a 25% increase on cases filed for
prosecution in 2022 compared to 119 cases filed
during the 2021 trading period. This was mainly

attributedtobythenumberofnewLPGoperators
that find it easy to quickly set up operations
without fully regularizingtheir operations.90%of
the prosecutedoperators wereable to regularize
their operationsduring theyear under review.

Fines levied to the offending operators ranged
from ZWL$2 000 to ZWL$200 000 and 1 retail
site operator was sentenced to 175 hours of
community service

7.4. PETROLEUMSECTOR
INFRASTRUCTUREMONITORING

7.4.1. Fuel Retail Sites Inspection

During theyear a total of574fuel retail sites were
visited for compliance to petroleum standards
compliance. Of these sites, 56 were first time
applicants for licences indicating a 10% growth
rate in the subsector for the year2022. Therehas
been a 40% increase in fieldmonitoring activities
since the relaxation of Covid 19 restrictions
resulting in increased compliance to standards
since 2021.

Below is a summary of the retail sites monitoring
inspections.
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LPG retail sites inspections conducted

A total of 47 applications for retail licenses were
rejected in the year due to poor infrastructure
standards endangering safety. The sites were
issuedwithcompliance ordersand askedto apply
after upgrading to meet retail sites standardZWS
970:2020 forservice stations.

7.4.1.1Gradingof fuel retail sites

In 2022, the Authority rolled out the pilot grading
and rating of fuel retail sites in the major cities of

The grading program has seen oil companies
making bookings with the Authority to have
their frontline staff trained on petroleum
industry standards to improve service quality at
their forecourts. Consequently, 203 forecourt
operators were trained by ZERA in 2022, up from
only 99 trained in 2021.

Harare, Bulawayo andMutare. Sites were rated 5
star,3starand1starwitha5starsitemeetingvery
high technical standards andall customerservice
experience aspects of aesthetics, customer care,
availability of free compressed air, availability of
clean toilets and a well-stocked convenience
shop; while a 1 star site met technical standards
but missedmostof the customerserviceaspects.
A total of 324 retail sites were graded in the year
and the distribution of grades is given below.

7.4.2. LPGRetail Sites Inspections

There was a significant number of LPG retail sites
pre-licensing inspection requests received in
2022 compared with the past 2 years as shown
below.

Figure 12

Distribution of ratings of graded sites

5Star

3Star

1 Star
27.60%

10%

62.40%

Operational Report
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Number of sites visited

No. of samples tested

No. of failures

Compliance %

Table 19: Fuel retail sites monitoring and testing

552

494

490

984

1

7

8

99.8

98.6

99.2

2022 2021 2020

592

421

439

860

4

8

12

99

98.6

98.6

445

257

226

483

0

3

3

100

98.7

99.4

Blend

D50

Total

Blend

D50

Total

Blend

D50

Total

The number of inspection visits were occasioned
by increased awareness of LPG standards and
enforcement requirements. Increasedawareness
was driven by increased ZERA training of LPG
retail and wholesale operators from 363 in 2021
to 464 trained in 2022.

The eight (8) oil companies found with
contaminated fuel were prosecuted for violating
fuel quality regulations. After conviction they paid
finesrangingfromZWL$60,000toZWL$200,000.
ZERA also facilitated the compensation of
6 motorists whose cars had been filled with
contaminated fuel. The Authority is rolling out
systems audits at fuel retail sites to minimise
fuel contamination issues at the forecourts using
petroleum industry best practices.

7.4.3. FuelQualityMonitoring

A total of 552 fuel retail sites were visited
countrywide in 2022 and 984 samples were
taken for testing. One (1) blend and seven
(7) D50 samples failed the tests due to water
contamination and low flashpoint respectively.

7.4.4. PetroleumStandardsAwareness

Duringtheyear, theAuthority trained667fueland
LPG fillers across the country. The lifting of the
covid19 restrictions enabled ZERA to reach out
tomany industry players for face-to-face training
resulting in improved standards awareness by
front officeworkers in the industry.

Operational Report
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ZWS 960:3 Standard for LPG filling
stations and procedures

ZWS 970 Guidelines and requirements
for fuel service stations

Total

Table 20: Petroluem operators training

Offtaker
2022

Number of operators trained

462

99

148

0

148561

2021 2020

667

464

203

The Authority has noted an improved safe
operating environment during the year as not a
single accident was reported at a licensed fuel or
LPG retail facility.

7.4.5.StandardsDevelopment&Review

7.4.5.1StandardsandGuidelines

a) Piped Gas Installation Guidelines – these
guidelines were developed in consultation with
key stakeholders in the LPG industry under
the auspices of the Standards Association of
Zimbabwe (SAZ). The guidelines in the form of
a standard, are now waiting for publication by
SAZ. They will guide regulatory bodies, installers
and developers in supervising and installing safe
reticulated LPG supply systems in residential and
commercial premises.

b) Registration Scheme of LPG Installers –
the scheme has taken off with the successful
registration of 9 industrial, commercial, and
residential installers by the Authority in the
year. The registered installers are listed on the
ZERA website for the information and interest
of members of the public. Registering of the
installers isawayofgiving independentassurance
to the public of the workmen’s experience and
competence in the grade in which they are
registered.

7.4.5.2Regulations

Aviation Fuel Regulations – were developed in
consultation with the Civil Aviation Authority
of Zimbabwe (CAAZ) and the oil companies
participating in the aviation fuel industry. The
regulations were drafted to fulfil the Authority’s
mandate to regulate all petroleum products
and to ensure that only licensed and designated
fuel companies supply aviation fuels to airports
and airlines in line with petroleum and aviation
industry requirements. The regulations will be
submitted to the Ministry of Energy and Power
Development in the firstquarter of 2023.

7.5. FINANCEANDADMINISTRATION

7.5.1 FinancialOverview

Introduction

The financial results for the year ended 31
December 2022 were achieved in a challenging
economicenvironment.Exacerbatedbyexchange
rate volatility the macroeconomic environment
continued to exhibit hyperinflationary traits,
thereby negatively impacting on the Authority’s
operations. Year on year inflation increased from
24.9% in 2021 to 105.5% in 2022. However, the
year saw revenue increasing by 74%compared to
the prior year, surplus correspondingly increased
by 16%. This helped keep the Authority afloat and
self-sufficient in its operations.

Operational Report
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Financial performanceoverview

The following overview of the financial
performance for the year ended 31 December
2022 is based on inflation adjusted figures.
Revenue increasedby 74%compared tothe prior
year. A total inflation adjusted revenue of ZWL$
6,891,379,263 was recognized in 2022, of which
60%was attributable to electricity levies, 16% to
electricity and fossil fuels licenses fees and the
remaining 24%was fromother income. A total of
ZWL$3,957,295,301 wasrecognized as income in
2021.

Totalexpenditurefortheyearended31December
2022 amounted to ZWL$4,383,526,108, out of
which 38% related to employment costs, 57%
administration overheads, 4% depreciation
and amortization and 1% corporate social
responsibility and donations, whereas
expenditure for the year ended 31 December
2021was at ZWL$2,428,676,267.

Operating surplus rose by 16% when comparing
2021 and 2022. In 2022, the Authority realized a
surplus of ZWL$989,973,606 up from a restated
surplus of ZWL$856,752,166 in 2021.

The net worth of the Authority for theyear ended
31 December 2022 was at ZWL$3,532,263,968
compared to ZWL$ 2,528,646,528 in the prior
year andthis accounted for a40% increase.

Capitalexpenditureacquisitionsfortheyearended
31 December 2022 totaled ZWL$432,631,625 up
from ZWL$67,919,403 in 2021, thus accounting
for an increase of 537%. The acquisitions were
mainly for operational and condition of service
vehicles and other tools of trade such as cell
phones and laptops.

In regards to the electricity account, a surplus of
ZWL$113,612,416 was realized in comparison to
a surplus ofZWL$28,749,071` in the prioryear. In
accordance withtheEnergyRegulatory Authority
Act (Chapter13:23) section 31, ZERA is required
to remit surplus funds realized in the electricity
account to the Rural Electrification Fund.

7.5.2AdministrationOverview

The Authority continued to exercise caution
and make concerted efforts toward minimizing
the spread of the Covid 19 pandemic, as all
employees and field officers were supplied with
personal protective equipment such as masks
and sanitizers. Fumigation and sanitization of all
offices including regional offices remained an
on-going process for the department and this
was maintained fortnightly. All employees were
provided with fuel to curtail the use of public
transport.

7.5.3ProcurementOverview

The Procurement Management Unit obtained
a Class A procurement license from the
Procurement RegulatoryAuthority of Zimbabwe.
This entails that the Authority is perceived to be
a low risk procuring entity in terms of incidences
of procurement mal-practices. The Authority
procured goods worth ZW$1,879,321,269.29
during the year against a planned expenditure
of ZW$1,900,000,000.00. Procurement levels
increased by 1094.95% fromZW$157,272,497.03
in 2021. Out of the total procurement spend,
ZW$1,050,003,000.29 were services whilst
ZW$829,318,269.00 were goods. Obsolete
assets and equipment were also disposed during
the year. The performance of key suppliers
by category was satisfactory as there were no
returns of goodsand services dueto poor quality.

Operational Report
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ZERA COMP01/2022

ZERA COMP02/2022

ZERA COMP05/2022

ZERA COMP06/2022

ZERA COMP07/2022

ZERA COMP08/2022

ZERA COMP09/2022

ZERA COMP10/2022

ZERA COMP11/2022

ZERA COMP12/2022

ZERA COMP13/2022

ZERA COMP14/2022

ZERA COMP15/2022

ZERA COMP16/2022

ZERA COMP17/2022

ZERA COMP18/2022

ZERA COMP19/2022

ZERA COMP20/2022

ZERA COMP21/2022

ZERA COMP22/2022

Tender Number

Table 21: List of Tenders awarded in 2022

Tender Description Winning Bidder Award Amount

Provision of Consultancy Services for foreign

currency conversion in SAP

Provision of National Stakeholder Satisfaction

and Energy Use Survey Services

Recruitment Services

Supply and Delivery of 5 x Mazda BT-50

Vehicles

Supply and Delivery of Coulometric Karl

Fisher

Supply and Delivery of Sulphur Tester

Supply and Delivery of 7 x Toyota D/Cab

vehicles

Supply and Delivery of 2 x Mazda D/Cab

vehicles

Provision of Training Services for Certified

Energy Manager and Certified Energy Auditor

LED lighting Retrofit for Chinhoyi Provincial

Hospital

Demolition of Existing Durawall and Erection

of a Palisade Fence at Athanasia Court

Removal of Existing Pavers, Landscaping and

Paving of Athanasia Court

Drilling of a 60m borehole, solar installation

for borehole, booster pumps and plumbing

works for 2 storey Athanasia Court.

Installation of Biometric System at

Athanasia Court

Installation of CCTV at Athanasia Court

Installation of Network System at Athanasia

Court

Supply and delivery of 2023 Diaries and

Calendars

Wall calendars and diaries

Slimline diaries

Supply and installation of solar PV and

thermal systems - Gamanya Clinic in Makonde

District (MashonalandWest Province)

Supply and installation of solar PV and

thermal systems - Chirongwe Clinic in Chivi

District (MashonalandWest Province)

Selection of Consultancy Services for Biomass

Resource Potential Assessment in Zimbabwe

Tano DigitalSolutions

University ofZimbabwe

Hatch TalentSolutions

Croco Motors

SlowGrad Engineering

SlowGrad Engineering

Croco Motors

Tsapo Commercial

Sustenergy

Power-Fix Electrical

Helensvale Construction

(Pvt) Limited

Emmanuel & Son Solutions

(Pvt) Limited

Gloer Investments

Fuzzy Electronics

Fuzzy Electronics

Flogate TechnologyGroup

Decadesigns Advertising&

Installation -A2 Desk & Tent

Grantpack Printing

ZIMUE Media

Sinet

Sinet

Future ProjectsConsulting

Africa

$US42,365.00 payableat

prevailing bankrate

US$114,176.00 payableat

prevailing bankrate

ZW$1,845,480.00

US$271,450.00

US$43,932.15 payableat

the prevailing bank rate

US$107,087.83 payableat

the prevailing bank rate

US$465,850.00

US$106,376.00

US$81,520.00

US$105,719.86 payableat

the prevailing bank rate

US$18,600.64

US$38,700,57

US$17,595.51

US$11,987.22

US$7,353.08

US$26,000.00

ZWL$3,015,000.00

ZWL$2,512,500.00

ZWL$1,587,900.00

US$63,771.34

US$40,881.09

US$42,000.00
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CEO’s Office

Procurement Unit

Internal Audit

Communications

Consumer Services

Corporate Service

Technical Services

Economic Regulation

Finance & Admin

Totals

Department

Table 22: ZERA Head Count

Budgeted Strength Female Vacancies

5

3

3

2

4

7

19

11

17

71

Male

5

3

2

2

3

7

18

9

16

65

3

2

1

1

1

3

15

6

5

37

2

1

1

1

2

4

3

3

11

28

0

0

1

0

1

0

1

2

1

6

7.6.HUMANRESOURCES

7.6.1. Head Count and technical and
professional capacity

TheAuthoritystrivesforcontinuousimprovement
in quality service delivery and ensuring its
mandate ismet. To meet the strategicgoals and

The headcount as at 31 December 2022 was 65
against a budget of 71 resulting in a vacancy rate
of 8%. In addition to the 65-permanent staff,

ZERA mandate, the Authority needs adequate,
skilled and engaged employees. Table below
shows theheadcount for the organisation

the Authority had 1 Student Intern, 2 Graduate
Trainees and16 FixedTerm contractemployees.

Operational Report
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Male

Female43% 57%

Figure 14

Gendermainstreaming pie chart

7.6.2 GenderMainstreaming

During theperiod under review, female
employees accounted for 43%of head count.

The Authority is continuously striving to achieve
a gender balance of 50% female employees.
A deliberate effort will be made to create the
required gender balancewhile taking cognisance
of qualification, experience and aptitude.

7.6.3 Organisational structure

In pursuit of a properly structured organization,
ZERA is in the process of reviewing the current
organizational structure to align it to the strategy
and ever-changing needs of the market. This
structure will enable the Authority to fulfil its
mandate in the most effective and economical
manner.

7.6.4Employeeperformance&turnover

Voluntary turnover was at 5% for the period
under review, ZERA continues to give priority in
attracting and retaining the right skills toexecute
its mandate. The organisation recognizes and
awards excellence and talent. Creating a strong
personal sense of commitment from staff
pushes individual employees to take ownership
and responsibility for their part in achieving
business objectives and outcomes. In addition
to this, ZERA is committed to developing good
performance management by monitoring
performance quarterly and giving constructive
feedback to employees and rewarding excellent

performance. This creates a comprehensive
process that includes full co-operation and
involvement of each staffmember.

7.6.5 EmployeeEngagement

Employee engagement plays a critical role in
achieving excellence in service delivery and the
achievementofobjectives. Inpursuitof improving
employee engagement, ZERA continued towork
on issues that were ranked low by employees in
the previousyear’s surveyresulting inan increase
from 53% in 2021 to 64% in November 2022. A
teambuilding event was done for the Authority’s
employees to improve onteamwork.

7.6.6 TrainingandDevelopmentand
Talentmanagement

Traininganddevelopment isacontinuousprocessas
skills, knowledgeandqualityofworkneedsconstant
improvement. AlotofattentionwaspaidtoLearning
and Development resulting in skills acquisition and
exposuretoregionalandinternationalbestpractices.
The Authority is committed to talent management
throughcapacitybuilding.

7.6.7Employee relations

Employee relations is important in fostering and
improving the relationship between employees
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and employers, and a lot of investment was done
to promote cordial relations with the employees.
Relevant training was conducted to capacitate
all stakeholders in employee relations and
engagement to discuss issuesofmutual interest.

7.6.8EmployeeWellness

Employee wellness is essential to the Authority
as it strives to achieve its mandate. Wellness
impacted positively to ZERA’s productivity.
Employees had an opportunity to take part in
physical wellness programmes amongst them
soccer and golf. The Authority finished the year
on secondplace intheSoccerParastatals League,
up from third place in 2021.

ZERA held online wellness programmes which
helped in creating awareness amongst its
employees on issues to do with physical health
covering cancer, stress, mental and HIVand Aids
and on financial andsocial wellness.

7.6.8.1Covid-19

The Authority followed the guidelines
for managing the Covid-19 pandemic by
decongestion of offices, social distancing,
handwashing, sanitizing, wearing of masks
and the use of Personal Protective Clothing.
The offices were also disinfected for Covid-19
occasionally and every time whenever there
were some positive Covid-19 cases. There were
no fatalities fromCovid-19.

Employees were capacitated to work remotely,
and meetingsand trainingsweredone virtually to

avoid physical contact.

7.6.9 Ethics

ZERA revised its Code of Ethics and held
consultative meetings with all stakeholders to
make sure their input is incorporated in the
new Code of Ethics. ZERA won three awards
from the Ethics Institute of Zimbabwe for this
effort as follows: -
- Best Code of Ethics Development and
ImplementationAward-StateOwnedEnterprises
and ParastatalsCategory
- Most Ethical Company of the Year Award –
Runner Up – Overall Category
- Ethical Company of the Year Award for State
Owned Enterprisesand Parastatals Category

7.7STAKEHOLDERENGAGEMENTAND
EDUCATION

7.7.1 RegionalConsumerEducation
Outreaches

Physical meetings were held in Chivhu, Chegutu,
Norton, Chitungwiza, Sunningdale, Rimuka,
Patchway, Jameson High School, Marange
High School, Zaka, Jerera, Gutu, Birchenough
Bridge, Mutare State University of Applied
Sciences, Nyanga Traditional leaders, Mutasa DC
Traditional leaders,Biriiri HighSchool, PafiwaHigh
School, PumulaSouth,Tshabalala, Nketa,Gokwe,
Kwekwe, Gweru, Kezi, Maphisa, Mhlahlandela,
Great Zimbabwe University, Pamushana High
School, Gokomere High School, Hwange
Empumalanga, Hwange Colliery and Entumbane
in Bulawayo.

Figure15:Stakeholder engagement at Jameson HighSchool, Kadoma
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Figure16:Stakeholder engagement at Gutu RDC offices inMasvingo

Figure17:Stakeholder engagementat HwangeColliery inMatebeleland NorthProvince

Figure18:Stakeholder engagement in StMarys, Chitungwiza
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7.8.QuarterlyStakeholderMeetings

Online quarterly stakeholder meetings were held
with the Chamber of Mines Zimbabwe (COMZ),
the Confederation of Zimbabwe Industries (CZI),
Farmers, Zimbabwe Electricity Transmission
and Distribution Company and the Indigenous
PetroleumAssociation of Zimbabwe (IPAZ).

7.8.1Consumer complaints anddispute
resolution

The Authoritycontinuedwith oneof its mandates
of resolving complaints and disputes. Most of
the disputes resolved in 2022 were from the
electricity subsector which contributed 61% of
the 127 complaints and disputes received. Most
of these complaints and disputes received were
to do with electricity power outages which had
taken longtobeattendedto.Theconstant follow-
up on electricity complaints, the existence of
ZETDC national contact centre, the enforcement
of consumer protection standards contributed
to the increase in resolved complaints from 112
in 2021 to 122 in 2022 marking a percentage
increase of 90.37% in 2022 from82.35% in 2021.

7.8.2 Consumer Initiated Conferences
andNetworking initiatives

The Authority made efforts to attend all the
Consumer initiated conferences and networking
initiatives which it was invited to in 2022. The
notable ones were CZI Annual Economic
Outlook, Customer Experience webinars:
Customer Care Association ofZimbabwe (CCAZ);

Consumer Protection Act: the roll out plan;
CCAZ Strategic Customer Experience seminar,
IPRCZ Communication & PR symposium; CZI
Strategy review workshop; Chamber of Mines
:State of mining industry; ZNCC: Mainstreaming
SDGs into business operations training;
Consumer Protection Commission Strategy
Planning Workshop; MAZ Customer Experience
Convention; UZ Golf Tournament fundraiser,
Parirenyatwa Golf tournament and the Harare
Residents TrustConference meeting.

7.9.COMMUNICATIONSANDPUBLIC
AFFAIRS

7.9.1Executive summary

The Communications Department led the
commemoration of the Authority’s 10th year
anniversary focusing on milestones achieved
as well as re-engaging stakeholders. This
theme resonated throughout the Authority’s
key activities, as both internal and external
stakeholders joined in celebrating this feat. The
year also saw the inaugural Golf Tournaments
being held, the donation to the Zimbabwe Albino
Association, the branding of ZUPCO buses
with awareness messages, with the Authority
receiving various accolades in acknowledgement
of the Authority’s commitment to excellence in
its operations.

7.9.2ZERA@10Celebrations

The Authority celebrated its 10 year annivesary
in style through a series of events rolled out in

Figure19:Stakeholder engagementheld atGreat ZimbabweUniversity, MasvingoCampus.
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Figure20: ZERApioneer staff at the ZERA@10 dinner

All staff received ZERA @10 branded
promotional items in commemoration of the
10-year anniversary and the use of the ZERA @
10 logo, letter head and email signatures were
discontinued on the 31st of December 2022
as the 10-year anniversary celebration for the
Authority came toa close.

7.9.3 International Engagements

i. Dubai Expo

The authority had a delegation consisting of
the Chief Executive Officer, Senior Manager
Economic Regulation and Communications
Officer, joining Ministry officials in attending the
EnergyWeek during the 2022 Dubai Expo.

ii. International RenewableEnergyConference

The Authority attended the Third International
Renewable Energy Conference hosted by Alpha
Media Holdings (AMH), through The Standard
newspaper and Heart and Soul TV, who facilitate

Harare and Bulawayo.

The ZERA @ 10 celebrations started off with a
cake cutting event at the Harare head office and
regional offices followed by the dinnerheld at the
Palm Estate attended by all ZERA staff and key
stakeholders.

this conference on renewable energy annually.
Theconferenceandexpowere inpartnershipwith
the Ministry of Energy and Power Development
under the theme “The New Frontier: Net Zero
Africa” and came on the heels of the anticipated
world conferenceCOP27.

The Renewable Energy Conference and expo is
the Energy sector’s affirmation of Zimbabwe’s
endorsement in the adoption of renewable
energy and its quest for clean energy by 2030.
The conference and expo brought together
various experts, authorities and financiers for
discussions to map the way forward on the road
to the 2030clean goal.

The Authority had on display the Electric Vehicle
which resonated well with the theme as well
as a delegation from senior management and
staff, with the Senior Engineer, Electricity having
podium time to speak on Electric vehicles as
well as participating in a panel discussion on the
Twitter Spacesplatform.

The ZERA @ 10 banner paved way for the
inaugural golf tournaments that were held in
Harare at Chapman Golf Club and Bulawayo Golf
Club respectively.
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iii. ConferenceofParties 27

The Authoritywaspart of thedelegation fromthe
Energy Sector consisting of the parent Ministry,
that attended the Cop 27 Climate Change
Conference, Sharm el-Sheikh in November
2022. This year’s conference saw the signing
of a landmark 500MW Solar Climate Action
Acceleration AgreementbetweenSky Powerand
the Governmentof the Republicof Zimbabwe.
The agreement signified a new era of sustainable
clean growth as it sealed the People-first Public
Private Partnership under the regional UN
Economic Commission guidelines for renewable
energy procurement. During the signing
ceremony, Zimbabwe was represented by H.E.
President Mnangagwa, Minister of Energy and
Power Development Hon. Zhemu Soda and
Senior Delegates of the country. Sky Power was
represented by the President and CEO, Kerry
Adler, and Senior Executive team.

7.9.4 Stakeholder Engagement and
Exhibitions

The Authority participated at the Zimbabwe
International Trade Fair in the month of April,
where the Authority won the Bronze Medal
for Best Exhibit in the Regulatory Authorities
Category.
ZERA participated as part of achieving its
mandate to raise awareness and promoting
alternative sources of energy and renewable
energy sources with the energy consumers,
potential investors, farmersandcommercialusers
of energy. The Authority was commemorating
its 10th year anniversary, thus the overarching
theme for the ZITF exhibition was #ZERA@10,
with a luncheon and Cake Cutting Ceremony to
commemorate and mark the beginning of ZERA
@10 celebrationsbeing held.
The Authority sponsored a floating trophy which
is exclusively for exhibitors from the energy
sector.

Figure21:The CEO,Mr. Mazambanigives thePresident, Cde.E. D.Mnangagwa an insight of the EV
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Figure 22: Hon Minister of Energy and Power Development, Z. Soda, is assisted in cutting the ZERA@10 Cake, by his deputy,
Hon.M.Mudyiwa (Left), Dr. Gloria Magombo –Permanent secretary in the Ministry ofEnergy, ZERAVice Board Chair Eng.Farai
Mavhiya-Bhiza whileZERA boardmembers andCEO (partlyobscured) lookon at the ZITFZERA@10 celebrations.

The Authority also attended the Harare 7.9.7Corporatepublications
Agricultural Show, Mashonaland Central Show,
Manicaland Show, Midlands Show and Mine
Entra.

7.9.5National EnergySatisfaction
Survey

The Authority rolled out the second National
Energy Satisfaction Survey in fulfilment of
PECOGA 2018 which compels state entities to
undertake such surveys as part of assessing how
well they are meeting their stakeholders’ needs
and expectations. The survey was finalised with
an outcome Stakeholder Satisfaction Index of
73.85%. Electricity remains the dominant form
of energy in the country, calling for stepped up
efforts to consistently raise awareness on use of
renewable energy.

7.9.6 Information, educationand
communicationmaterial

The department facilitated the production of the
Net Metering brochure, the LED lighting as well
as the Net Metering awareness video. The goal
being to widely share messages promoted by
the Authority to as vast an audience as possible.
The Authority also had audio messages aired on
national radio in English, Shona and IsiNdebele,
on dangersof fallenelectricity cables.

The 2021 Annual Report was duly approved
and published well within its statutory deadline.
The report was shared widely with Parliament,
Ministry of Energy and Power Development and
stakeholders in the industry, whilst electronic
copy wasuploaded onto the ZERAwebsite.

The first edition of the ZERA Magazine was also
published as well as a Net Metering corporate
video that was played at the Annual CEO’s
Roundtable Conference and the Institute of
Directors of Zimbabwe (IODZ) corporate dinner.

7.9.8CorporateSocial Responsibility

The Authority took up its Corporate Social
Responsibility to raise funds towards helping
People lving With Albinism. After holding
its inaugural Golf tournament in Harare and
Bulawayo, with the support of its stakeholders
in the energy industry, the Authority raised
ZWL8million dollars which was channelled
towards the Matabeleland North Chapter of the
ZimbabweAlbino Association, with a total of 194
people with albinism.

The authority donated skin care products and
sun protection materials which consisted of an
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assortment of sunscreen sprays, lotions, bath
soaps, lip balms, long sleeved t-shirts and sun
hats amounting to approximately ZW$46 000
per person.

The Authority was keen to support even small
initiatives such as the procurement of a first aid
kit for the Girls High School basketball team who
were competing in South Africa.

7.9.9AwardsandRecognitions in2022

The Authority was on a definite triumph and
received the following accolades during the year:
I. ZITF 2022 Best Exhibition in the Regulatory
AuthoritiesCategory:3rd place

II. 2022BusinessEthicsAwards:
Best Ethical Company of the Year Award Runner
Up – Overall Category
Best Code of Ethics Development and
Implementation Award

III. 2022 IPMZAwards:
HR Excellence Award- Male CEO of The Year
Award (E.T Mazambani)
HR Excellence Award- Best HR Manager 2022
Public Sector (Mrs. K.Kowo)
HR Excellence Award- Leadership Coach Female
Second RunnerUp (Mrs.K. Kowo)
HR Excellence Award- Female HR Practitioner
Public Sector 2022- Second Runner Up (Mrs. T.
Ngwenya)

7.9.10Regional integration

As a member of the Regional Energy Regulators
Association, the Authority attended the Annual

RERA Committee and Portfolio Meetings,
both virtually and physically as hosted by the
Eswatini Energy Regulatory Authority (ESERA).
The meetings continue to be learning platforms
as well as benchmarking sessions amongst the
energy regulators in the region.

7.10QUALITYMANAGEMENT

7.10.1 Quality Management Systems:
ZWS ISO9001:2015

The Authority was proud to retain its ZWS ISO
9001:2015 Quality Management System (QMS)
certification following a recertification audit by
the Standards Association of Zimbabwe (SAZ)
end of 2021. The recertification, valid for another
3 years, serves as independent verification and
endorsement of the continuous effectiveness
of the Authority’s quality management system.
It gives confidence to stakeholders and clients
that the Authority’s processes will continue to
deliver services that meet their expectations in a
responsive andconsistent manner.

The Authority has been encouraging its licensees
to also adopt quality management systems in
their strategies and operations through the
approval of their quality manuals and operating
procedures in fulfilment of the requirements
of Petroleum (Fuel Quality) Regulations, 2013.
Consequently, QMS procedures for 7 major oil
companies were approved by the Authority in
2022. It is hopedthat byadopting QMS, licensees
will build proactive approaches to dealing with
their customers issues, especially product quality
resulting in a reduction in quality incidents and
complaints.
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Kariba

Hwange

Bulawayo

Munyati

Harare

NRE Hydro

NRE Solar

Dema

Chisumbanje

Kupinga

Claremont

Centragrid

ZZEE

Solgas

Total
Internal

Sources

Table 23: Sources of Energy

YTD 2022
Supply (GWh)

YTD 2021
Supply (GWh)

Difference
(GWh) Variance %

5,757.09

2,559.71

24.60

66.12

38.67

121.30

4.20

0

3.28

11.15565

1.82058

3.705592

232.1243

7.61398

8,831.38

5,813.74

2,307.85

31.47

87.74

80.73

110.84

5.26

-0.22

0.22

9.54

1.8

3.65

0

0

8,452.62

-56.65

251.86

-6.87

-21.63

-42.06

10.46

-1.06

0.22

3.06

1.62

0.02

0.06

232.12

7.61

378.76

-1%

11%

-22%

-25%

-52%

9%

-20

-100%

1391%

17%

1%

2%

100%

100%

4%

8.1ELECTRICITY SUB-SECTOR

8.1.1Overall SourcesofEnergy2021

A total of 10,710 GWh of energy was supplied in
2022 against 10,193 GWh in 2021 (5% increase).
Annual energy supply shows that Kariba power
station was the dominant energy supply source
in 2022. KaribaSouthpower stationdecreased its
output by 1%. Hwange power stations increased
its output compared to2021 by11%.

The decrease in output from Kariba South and
small thermal stations was compensated by
new capacity at Zimbabwe Zhongxin Electrical
Energy (ZZEE) and increase in Hwange output.
Imports increased slightly by 140 GWhs from
1,740GWhs in 2021 to 1,880GWhs in 2022. EDM
of Mozambique, ZESCO and DAM compensated
for thedecrease in imports fromEskomandHCB.
The energy delivered to the transmission system
in 2022 exceeded 10,000 GWh for the second
year running.

8.0 SUB-SECTOR
PERFORMANCE

Electricity Sub-sector Performance



ZERA Annual Report 2022

2

New Section Heading

59

2022

2021

% Change

2,559.71

2,307.85

11%

5,757.09

5,813.74

-1%

38.67

80.73

-52%

66.12

87.74

-25%

24.60

31.47

-22%

Year

Table 24: ZPC Energy Sent Out (GWh)

Hwange Kariba Harare Munyati Bulawayo

ZESCO

ESKOM

HCB (Schedule)

EDM

DAM Import

DAM Export

Nampower

Total
External

Total
Supply

354.189

1,064.653

458.254

330.402

66.8836

-10.6592

-384.465

1.879.257

10,710.64

0

1,502.16

493.38

185.5

9.65

-25.4

-424.84

1,740.45

10,193.07

354.19

-437.51

-35.13

144.90

57.23

14.74

40.38

138.81

517.57

100%

-29%

-7%

78%

593%

-58%

-10%

8%

5%

8.1.2.Analysis ofZPCPerformance

The total energy sent out in Hwange increased
by 11% from 2,307.85 GWh in 2021 to 2,559.71 in
2022. AtKaribapowerstation theenergy sentout
decreased by 1% from 5,813.74 GWh in 2021 to
5,757.09 in2022 duetowater conservation

caused by low lake levels, unavailability of units4
and 6 due to runner breakdowns and Generator
8 transformer failure. The individual contribution
from the generating stations is as depicted in
Table 7and Figure3

Electricity Sub-sector Performance
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Hwange Kariba Harare Munyati Bulawayo

2022

2021

0.00

1,000.00

2,000.00

3,000.00

4,000.00

5,000.00

6,000.00

2,559.71

2,307.85

5,757.09

5,813.74

38.67

80.73

66.12

87.74

24.6

31.47

Figure 23

ZPC Energy Sent Out (GWh)

Hwange Power Station

Small Thermals

Kariba Power Station

67.67

26.57

83.41

42.41

35

94.8

75

70

90

-10%

-62%

-7%

60%

-24%

-12%

Plant

Table 25: ZPC Plant Availability Factor

Actual
2022

Actual
2021

ZERA
Target Variance

2021/2022
Variance %

Electricity Sub-sector Performance
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Hwange Power Station

Small Thermals

Kariba Power Station

38

30

6

93

37

12

6

9

3

533%

233%

100%

-59%

-19%

-50%

Plant

Table 27: ZPC Plant Trips

Actual
2022

Actual
2021

ZERA
Target Variance 2021/2022

Variance %

Hwange Power Station

Small Thermals

Kariba Power Station

26.81

15.4

92.79

25.03

15.96

90.21

30

20

95

-11%

-23%

-2%

7%

-4%

3%

Plant

Table 26: ZPC Plant Efficiency

Actual
2022

Actual
2021

ZERA
Target Variance 2021/2022

Variance %

Plant availability was constrained by prolonged
unit 1 and 5 outages with unit 5 remaining out of
operation for the whole year and unit 1 out from

Inadequate plant maintenance remains a major
driver towards plant efficiencychallenges.

Q1 to Q3, numerous forced outages including
boiler tube leaks andother plantbreakdowns.

Electricity Sub-sector Performance
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NRE

Hippo Valley Estates

Triangle Limited

Border Timbers

Chisumbanje

Dema E/Peaking Power

Kupinga

Claremont

Centergrid

ZZEE

Solgas

Total

Producer

Table 28: IPP Performance

Technology
Production (GWh)

2022

Mini-hydro & Solar

Biomass

Biomass

Biomass

Biomass

Diesel

Mini-hydro

Mini-hydro

Solar

Thermal

Solar

125.5

0

0

0

3.28

0

11.5

1.8

3.7

232

7.6

385.38

2021 2020 2019 2018

116.1

0

0

0

0.22

0

9.54

1.8

3.65

-

-

131.31

88.2

40.6

30.4

0

10.7

0

6.6

1.7

2.63

-

-

181

112

63.2

83.9

0

39.5

0.15

13.1

1,68

-

-

-

311

70.1

56.2

115.2

0

5

0

3.3

1.6

-

-

-

251.4

A significant decrease in the number of trips
was recorded at ZPC power stations in the year
2022 compared to the same period in 2021. Unit
trips remain a key area of concern due to their
contribution to poor system performance and
the associatedcostof restarting theunits inorder
to supply load to the grid.

8.1.3Performanceby Independent
PowerProducers

IPP contributed 4.5% of the total energy
production in 2022. IPPs grid contribution
increased by 193% from 131.31 GWh in 2021 to
385.38 GWh in 2022 mainly due to new capacity
at ZZEE and Solgas and increased rain at mini
hydro plants. The following table summarises
the total annual production over the period 2018
through to 2022:

Electricity Sub-sector Performance
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8.1.4TransmissionandDistribution

Energy sales increased by 9% to 9,225 GWh
2022 from8,439 GWhin 2021.Energy saleswere
above the Authority’s target of 8,760 GWh and
this translates to a positive variance of 5.3% and
9% abovethe 2021sales.

The increase in consumption of electricity has
been attributed to increased capacity utilisation
mainly in the mining and industrial, agriculture
and commercial sectors due to increased
production and the sectors are less affected by
load shedding.

Domestic Metered

Domestic Prepayment

Mining and Industrial

Commercial

Agriculture

Public Lighting

ZETDC Properties

Total

Table 29: Energy consumption per sector in 2022

350.73

1,959.30

4,545.66

1,813.46

491.00

54.75

10.49

9,225.00

Consumption GWh YTD 2022
2021/2022
Variance

YTD 2021

-11%

3%

15%

9%

10%

-24%

19%

9%

393.80

1,899.20

3,957.60

1,660.80

446.70

71.80

8.80

8,438.70

8.1.5EnergyDelivered

The total energy delivered to the transmission
system for2022 was10,713.58 GWhagainst

10,193.08 GWh delivered the same period last
year. This represents a5.1% increase in supply.

10,713.58 10,193.08 5.1%

Total Energy
Delivered
Transmission

(GWh)

Table 30: Energy delivered to ZETDC

2022 2021 Variance (%)

Total

Electricity Sub-sector Performance
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Kariba

Hwange

Bulawayo

Munyati

Harare

NRE Hydro

NRE Solar

Dema

Chisumbanje

Kupinga

Claremont

Centragrid

ZZEE

Solgas

Total
Internal

ZESCO

ESKOM

HCB (Schedule)

EDM

DAM Import

DAM Export

Nampower

Total
External

Total
Supply

Sources

Table 31: Q4 2022 Energy delivery by source

YTD 2022
Supply (GWh)

YTD 2021
Supply (GWh)

Difference
(GWh) Variance %

5,757.09

2,559.71

24.60

66.12

38.67

121.30

4.20

0

3.28

11.15565

1.82058

3.705592

232.1243

7.61398

8,831.38

354.189

1,064.653

458.254

330.402

66.8836

-10.6592

-384.465

1.879.257

10,710.64

5,813.74

2,307.85

31.47

87.74

80.73

110.84

5.26

-0.22

0.22

9.54

1.8

3.65

0

0

8,452.62

0

1,502.16

493.38

185.5

9.65

-25.4

-424.84

1,740.45

10,193.07

-56.65

251.86

-6.87

-21.63

-42.06

10.46

-1.06

0.22

3.06

1.62

0.02

0.06

232.12

7.61

378.76

354.19

-437.51

-35.13

144.90

57.23

14.74

40.38

138.81

517.57

-1%

11%

-22%

-25%

-52%

9%

-20

-100%

1391%

17%

1%

2%

100%

100%

4%

100%

-29%

-7%

78%

593%

-58%

-10%

8%

5%

Kariba South remained the dominant supplier
of energy in the country contributing 35%.
However, the lake levels were below expected
levels and affected generation targets. Hwange
remained consistent from Q2 2022 contributing

23%, ESKOM 9%, ZESCO 7.6%, HCB 4% and
EDM2% respectively, whilst small thermal power
plants contributed 1%combined and IPPprojects
contributionwas slightly above 3%.

8.1.6Energysales

Energy sales increased by 9.2% as given in the
Table 31 above. Energy sales were above the

Authority’stargetof2,190GWhandthistranslates
to apositive varianceof 0.32%.

Electricity Sub-sector Performance
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9,219 8,439 9.2%

Distribution
Sales
(GWh)

Table 32: Total Energy Consumption

2022 2021 Variance (%)

Total

The increase in consumption has been attributed
to increased capacity utilisation mainly in the
agriculture and commercial sectors due to

increased production and the sector is less
affected by load shedding. (Table 31 below).

Domestic Metered

Domestic Prepayment

Mining and Industrial

Commercial

Agriculture

Public Lighting

ZETDC Properties

Total

Table 33: Energy consumption per sector in 2022

350.73

1,959.30

4,545.66

1,813.46

491.00

54.75

10.49

9,225.00

Consumption GWh YTD 2022
2021/2022
Variance

YTD 2021

-11%

3%

15%

9%

10%

-24%

19%

9%

393.80

1,899.20

3,957.60

1,660.80

446.70

71.80

8.80

8,438.70

Electricity Sub-sector Performance
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b)NewConnections

The total number of new connections in 2022
increased by 18%over 2021 (see Table 33 below)
and this isattributed tocustomersprocuring own
accessorymaterials used for connections.

The active customer base by end of 2022
increased by 8% to 852,003 in 2022 from
789,394 in2021.Theincrease inactivecustomers
is attributedto therebound of the economy.

New connections

Active customer base

Customers paid but not connected

Table 35: Losses in Transmission and Distribution

Description 2022 2021 Variance

18%

8%

17%

22,021

789,394

11,704

25,916

852,003

13,706

8% 6% 9.2%

Losses

Table 34: Losses in Transmission and Distribution

2022 2021 2022/2021
Difference

Distribution 12% 2%

DifferenceZERA
Target

14%

8.1.7DistributionofQualityparameters

a)SystemLosses

Distribution system losses for 2022 were 14%
against ZERA’s target of 8%. These losses are
6%higher than the ZERA approved target of 8%.
Lack ofstatistical meteringis hamperingaccurate
measurement of losses inthedistributionsystem.

The utility has established a Revenue Assurance
Department to administer reduction of non-
technical losses which could be very high owing
to the harsh economic conditions and the
propensity for customers to engage in revenue
reduction shenanigans such as by passing of
metering current transformers.

Electricity Sub-sector Performance
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8.1.8 IndustryRelatedAccidents

The Electricity Supply Industry recorded 88
accidents; an 18.92% increase as compared to
2021. Thenumber ofhuman fatalities increased

Themajority of the accidents occurred in Southern, Northern andHarare Regions.

by 17.24%, whilst livestockfatalities decreasedby
9% from a total of 11 in 2021.

88

34

Reported
Accidents

Table 36: Industry-related accidents

YTD 2022 %Change

Total

Fatal (Humans)

74

29

18.92

17.24

YTD 2021

Total

Fatal
(Humans)

Fatal
(Livestock)

Total

Fatal
(Humans)

Fatal
(Livestock)

%TotalWesternSouthernEasternNorthernHarare

2022

2021

Table 37: Industry-related accidents by province

38.6%

11.4%

84.1%

33.0%

12.5%

%Change

88

34

10

74

29

11

18.92

19

6

0

6

2

0

216.67

21

11

1

28

14

3

-25

11

7

0

14

5

0

-21.43

28

6

9

16

4

7

75

9

4

0

10

4

1

-10

Northern and Southern Regions remains with
higher number of accidents recorded and a
sharp increase noted in Harare Region whilst a

downward trend was recorded in Eastern and
Western Regions.
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2022

2021

2020

2019

2018

Percent Difference (%)

Year and Period

Table 39: Petroleum Products imports 2018 - 2022

Diesel (ltrs) Petrol (ltrs) Jet A1 (ltrs) Total (ltrs)

1,041,426,112

849,605,993

736,447,091

937,171,992

921,171,992

18.4

Paraffin (ltrs)

613,728,889

513,712,727

403,897,735

456,080,132

616,339,735

16.3

1,062,000

739,494

1,791,590

5,100,022

11,682,716

30.4

78,552,133

48,687,310

21,880,815

63,073,804

74,605,374

38.0

1,732,769,134

1,412,745,524

1,164,017,231

1,461,660,560

1,623,799,817

18.6

*Comparison of2022 and2021

88 were the electrical accidents were recorded
in 2022. Unsafe use of electricity or practice
by members of the public and infrastructure
collapse were the leading causes of the electrical
accidents.31accidentsweredueto infrastructure
collapse contributing 35% whilst 36 were due to
unsafe operations by the members of the public
attributing to 41%.

Fatal accidents were 34 and 31 of the fatal
accidents were investigated in 2022.

8.2PETROLEUMINDUSTRY
PERFORMANCE

8.2.1 Liquid fuel importation

A total of 1.734 billion litres of fuel was imported
into the country in 2022. This figure is 18.6%
greater than the volumes imported in the year

2021. This represents thehighest quantityever to
be imported into thecountry.
The table below shows the annual volumes
imported in the period 2018 to 2022 for each of
the petroleumproducts.

5

31

16

36

88

1.

2.

3.

4.

Table 38: Causes of Accidents

Total

Theft and Vandalism on electricity infrastructure

Infrastructure collapse

Unsafe operations by employees

Unsafe practices/operations by the public

Total

5.68

35.23

18.18

40.91

100.00

%DistributionIncidents

Electricity Sub-sector Performance
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Diesel Imports,2021/22

LI
TR
ES

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
0

10,000.00

20,000.00

30,000.00

40,000.00

50,000.00

60,000.00

70,000.00

80,000.00

2021 2022

Figure 25

Petrol Imports, 2021/22

8.2.2Monthly importation trends

The figure 24 below shows the monthly fuel
imports trend for diesel and petrol for the years
2021 and2022. Therewere noshortages in the

reporting period which shows stability in the
supply ofmain fuels.

Petroleum Industry Performance
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January

February

March

April

May

June

July

August

September

October

November

December

Total

Table 40: Monthly Illuminating Paraffin and Jet A1 Fuel Imports, 2021/22

260,000

180,000

-

80,000

-

55,000

85,000

172,000

40,000

156,000

-

34,000

1,062,000

Month 2022 20222021

2,951,881

1,990,637

2,107, 379

4,360,664

4,073, 154

5,436,282

4,536,282

4,168,253

5,777,028

5,817,379

4,767,453

2,669,046

48,687, 310

61,189

-

-

68,000

130,000

119,000

80,000

-

-

120,000

40,000

121,305

739,494

2021

1,340,309

3,721,446

6,416,791

3,786,919

8,376,997

6,881,121

8,698,232

10,297,031

7,824,470

6,719,355

7,885,811

6,603,651

48,687, 310

8.2.3 Illuminating paraffin and Jet A1
imports

The growth in the importation of Jet A1 has been
significant between 2021 and 2022 due to the
increased economic activities especially tourism
and hospitality industry following the lifting of

COVID-19 restrictions.

Illuminating paraffin imports have however
remained subdued. However, the 2022 figures
still showsignificant growthover 2021.The table4
below shows the importation of both illuminating
paraffin and Jet A1.

8.2.4LPG imports

The market has attained a 5% increase in the
volumes between 2021 and 2022. The growth is
however at a decreasing rate as compared

to previous trends. The graph below shows the
annual importation trends of the product since
2012.

Petroleum Industry Performance
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Annual LPG Imports, 2012 – 2022

January

February

March

April

May

June

July

August

September

October

November

December

Total

Month

Table 41: LPG Imports, 2021/22

LPG Imports (kgs)

2021 2022

4,131,000

3,872, 756

4,995,281

4,081,959

3,899,309

4,652,925

5,711,645

5,319,353

3,727,171

4,858,276

6,319,399

5,220,474

56,789,548

4,721,237

5,097,549

4,938,355

5,304,169

4,586,638

5,889,312

5,224,734

5,528,228

4,781,947

4,394,932

4,311,164

5,120,280

59,898,544

The table below of LPG imports shows the
monthly trend for the years 2021 and 2022.

Petroleum Industry Performance



A decade of sustainable service

1

New Section Heading

72

January

February

March

April

May

June

July

August

September

October

November

December

Total

Month

Table 42: Ethanol Production and Dispatches, 2022

Production
(ltrs)

Green Fuel Triangle

Dispatch (ltrs)
to blending

Production
(ltrs)

Dispatch (ltrs)
to blending

0

0

0

0

4,826,851

9,677,332

10,875,338

13,334,062

13,690,521

13,486,358

9,473,751

0

75,364,21

0

0

0

0

4,820,686

9,664,971

10,647,892

10,730,973

8,788,267

10,598,469

11,306,253

5,362,507

71,920,018

2,808,456

2,732,716

1,171,216

0

0

779,490

2,873,703

1,782,993

2,199,501

2,815,971

2,479,757

663,261

20,307,064

2,795,999

1,830,426

0

0

590,596

995,120

2,584,253

1,782,993

3,373,408

2,130,912

2,788,444

1,153,514

20,025,665

8.2.5Ethanol Production

Theproductionofethanol fromthetwoproducers
is shown in the table below. For Green Fuel, the
production in 2022 is a significant jump from the

7.2.6Petroleumsales

Thecomparisonofsalesof themain fuelssupplied
in themarket is displayed in table below. The fuel
imports are not too different from the

64.6 million litres produced in 2021 whereas for
Triangle, the2022 production is 6.38 million litres
less than the 26.4million litres produced in 2021.

consumption figures showing that most of the
fuel immediately getsabsorbed into the market.

Petroleum Industry Performance
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Disel (ltrs)

Blend (ltrs)

Paraffin (ltrs)

Jet A1 (ltrs)

LPG (Kgs)

Table 44: Daily Consumption of Fuels, 2021/22

Product 2022

Daily Consumption Estimates

2,841,963

1,773,270

3,424

165,676

158,442

2,369,482

1,585,647

2,324

118,357

155,587

2021

January

February

March

April

May

June

July

August

September

October

November

December

Total

Table 43: Main Fuel Sales, 2021/2022

73,752,761

79,401,258

84,416,711

80,490,911

80,860,344

83,278,379

93,063,489

98,239,823

94,013,956

86,267,678

94,902,783

88,628,425

1,037,316,518

Month 2022 20222021

46,770,682

53,483,471

50,693,257

45,807,293

50,050,107

47,753,659

50,947,727

64,827,360

53,110,904

63,155,008

51,076,602

69,567,463

647,243,533

29,030,527

34,101,371

43,574,666

38,089,044

55,642,887

43,072,290

43,540,818

56,839,358

53,138,534

46,270,849

52,109,823

82,256,044

577,666,212

42,669,655

45,786,093

51,915, 140

67,709,856

70,537,333

68,132,496

67,737,122

85,338,020

90,090,639

75,470,227

94,453,296

105,020,914

864,860,791

2021

Diesel Petrol

8.2.6 Daily consumption of liquid fuels
andLPG

There were significant increases in the daily
consumption figures between 2021 and 2022 as

shown in the table below. Table below shows the
changes to the daily fuel consumption figures.
The consumption trends arecommensurate with
the corresponding increases in importation of
each product.

Petroleum Industry Performance
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Retail

Commercial

Agriculture

Mining

Construction

Manufacturing

Transport

OMC

OwnUse

Total

Sector

Table 45: Petroleum Products Sales by Economic Sector

Diesel

Percentage (%) Percentage (%)

39.05

23.88

5.51

9.94

2.95

3.77

5.42

9.39

0.09

100

66.75

10.66

1.88

1.62

0.81

1.07

1.33

15.27

0.61

100

Petrol

8.2.7 Petroleum Products Sales by
EconomicSector

The Table 20 shows the percentage sales of the
petroleum products by economic sectors. The
bulk of petroleum productsare consumed in

8.2.8PetroleumProductsSalesby
GeographicRegion

The table below shows the percentage sales of
the petroleum products by geographic region.
Harare dominates regional fuel sales because

the domestic (retail) sector, commercial and
transport.

of higher numbers of fuel sites as highlighted in
Diagram 1 above.

Petroleum Industry Performance
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Harare

Bulawayo

Manicaland

Mash Central

Mash East

MashWest

Mat North

Mat South

Midlands

Masvingo

Total

Sector

Table 46: Petroleum Products Sales by GeographicRegion

Diesel

Percentage (%) Percentage (%)

Petrol

55.39

8.48

9.76

3.32

2.38

5.40

3.46

1.04

8.18

2.60

100

56.20

10.58

8.18

3.11

2.82

4.43

2.20

0.60

8.28

3.59

100

Europe Brent Spot Price FOB (Dollars per Barrel)
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Figure 27
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Average FOBs
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ZWL MaximumPump Price
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FOBPricemovement

The Department conducted forty-six petroleum
price reviewsas atDecember 2022and theprices
followed the same trend as indicatedwith the

international crude oil prices. The graph below
shows the FOB prices for the period January 2022
to December 2022.

Maximumpumpprices
The ZERA calculated maximum average retail
prices of petrol and diesel are indicated in the
graphs below. The pump price could have been
higher had theMinistry of Finance and Economic
Development not forgone part of revenue
accruing from the strategic levy. Depending on

the circumstances, instead of applying the full
strategic levy at USc12.7/litre, the MOFED has
agreed to collect less as a way of cushioning the
economy.

The graphs below show the US$ and the ZWL
petroleumprices up to December 2022.

Petroleum Industry Performance
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Maximum PumpPrice
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Regional Petroleum Prices
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Regional prices comparisons
The Department undertook a comparison of
fuel prices in the SADC region. The prices below
represent the averages for December 2022. Fuel

prices inZimbabwe isnow comparablewith other
countries in the region.
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LPGPrice
The department conducted twelve LPG Price
reviews in 2022. The major determinant of the
final price has been the changes in the prices at
source and the exchange rate between ZWL and
the US$.

The following table shows the LPG prices during
the period January to December 2022:

January 2022

February 2022

March 2022

April 2022

May 2022

June 2022

July 2022

August 2022

September 2022

October 2022

November 2022

December 2022

Month

Table 47: LPG Imports for 2022

LPG prices (US$/kg)

2.05

2.03

2.07

2.32

2.24

2.25

1.99

2.02

1.88

1.85

1.78

1.83

Petroleum Industry Performance
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records may be relied on for the preparation of
the financial statements. However, any system
of internal financial control can provide only
reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against
materialmisstatements or loss.

The directors have reviewed ZERA’s cash flow
forecast for the year to 31 December 2023 and
in the light of this review and the current financial
position, they are satisfied that ZERA has access
to adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future.

The external auditors are responsible for
independently reviewing and reporting on ZERA’s
financial statements. The financial statements
have been examined by ZERA’s external auditors
and their report is presented on pages 83 to 86.

The financialstatements setout onpages 87to 111
which have been prepared on the going concern
basis, were approved by the board of directors on
9 June 2023 and were signed on its behalf by:

Approval of financial statements

________________________________
Dr. D.Madzikanda
Board Chairperson

________________________________
Mr. E. T.Mazambani
Chief Executive Officer

Preparer of the financial statements

The financial statementswere prepared under the
supervision of Mr. N. Ranga, a registered Public
Accountant Zimbabwe (Reg number 0549).

________________________________
Mr. N.Ranga
Finance andAdministration Director

Directors’Responsibilities&Approval

The directors of Zimbabwe Energy Regulatory
Authority (ZERA) are required in terms of the
Energy Regulatory Authority Act (Chapter
13:23) and the Public Finance Management Act
(Chapter 22:19) to maintain adequate accounting
records and are responsible for the content
and integrity of the financial statements and
related financial information included in this
report. It is their responsibility to ensure that
the financial statements fairly present the state
of affairs of ZERA as at the end of the financial
year and the results of its operations and cash
flows for the period then ended, in conformity
with International Financial Reporting Standards.
The external auditors are engaged to express an
independent opinion on the financial statements.

The financial statements are prepared in
accordancewith International Financial Reporting
Standards and are based upon appropriate
accounting policies consistently applied and
supported by reasonable and prudent judgments
and estimates.

The directors acknowledge that they are
ultimately responsible for the system of internal
financial control established by ZERA and place
considerable importance on maintaining a strong
control environment. To enable ZERA to meet
these responsibilities, the board of directors sets
standards for internal control aimed at reducing
the risk of error or loss in a cost-effectivemanner.
The standards include the proper delegation of
responsibilities within aclearly defined framework,
effective accounting procedures and adequate
segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable
level of risk. These controls are monitored
throughout ZERA and all employees are required
to maintain the highest ethical standards in
ensuring ZERA’s business is conducted in a
manner that in all reasonable circumstances is
above reproach. The focus of riskmanagement in
ZERA is on identifying, assessing, managing and
monitoring all known forms of risk across ZERA.
While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated,
ZERA endeavors to minimize it by ensuring that
appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and
ethical behavior are applied and managed within
predetermined procedures and constraints.

The directors are of the opinion, based on
the information and explanations given by
management that the system of internal controls
provides reasonable assurance that the financial
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Basis forOpinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standardsare further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the organization
in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants Code of
Ethics Professional for Accountants (Parts A
and B) (IESBA Code) and other independence
requirements applicable to performing audits
of financial statements in Zimbabwe. We
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the IESBA Code and in
accordance with other ethical requirements
applicable to performing audits in Zimbabwe.We
believe that the audit evidencewe have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for
our opinion.

Keyauditmatters

Key audit matters are those matters that,
in our professional judgment were of the
most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period and which are
not materially impacted by thematter described
in the Basis of Opinion section. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit
of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. We
determined the matters below to be key audit
matters to communicate in our report.

IndependentAuditor’sReport
______________________________________________
______________________________________________

To theMembers ofZimbabwe Energy Regulatory
Authority (“ZERA”)

Report on the Audit of the Inflation Adjusted
financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the inflation adjusted financial
statements of the Zimbabwe Energy Regulatory
Authority (ZERA) which comprise the inflation
adjusted statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022, the inflation adjusted statement
of profitor lossand othercomprehensive income,
inflation adjusted statement of changes inequity,
inflation adjusted statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes
to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the inflation adjusted financial
statements present fairly, in all material respects
the statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022, and its financial performance
and cash flows for the year ended in accordance
with the International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and in the manner required
by the Zimbabwe Energy Regulatory Authority
(ZERA) accounting policies.
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment (High Risk)

ZERA revalued its property, plant and
equipment at the end of the year to correctly
show the value of various items of property,
plant and equipment as well as investment
properties.

There is inherent complexity in accounting,
measurement, valuation and disclosure
requirements of IAS 16 and IFRS 13.
The significance of these assets on the ZERA’s
statement of financial position is high.
The valuation of PPE is subjective due to the
absence of an activemarket for some items of
property, plant and equipment in the
Zimbabwean market. Because of the
significance of these issues, valuation of
property, plant andequipment was considered
a key audit matter for the audit of ZERA.

•

•

•

Our procedures encompassed the following;

Review the work of an expert as required by
International Standards on Auditing (ISA 620)
by assessing qualifications and experience in
valuation of property, plant and equipment.
Review of inputs used by the expert in
determining fair value and assessing the
inputs for reasonableness
Assess whether the valuation technique used
by the expert is consistent with fair value
measurement methods in terms of IFRS 13.
Assess whether the entity complied with the
accounting for the revaluation as required by
IAS 16.
Recompute revaluation reserve and review
revaluation journals for accuracy and
compliance with IAS 16.
Review financial statements for adequate
disclosures as required by IAS 16.
Based on our procedures, we noted no
exceptions and consider management’s
application of IAS 16 and IFRS 13 to be
appropriate.

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

Following Public Accountants and Auditors
Board (“PAAB”) designation of Zimbabwe as
hyperinflationary economy, the Authority applied
the IAS 29 – Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies.
Hyperinflationary accounting was determined to
be a matter of most significance to the audit due
to the complexity and subjectivity relating to the
application of the Standard.
IAS 29 requires significant judgments to be made
by management considering the guidelines
provided in the standard.

We obtained an understanding of theAuthority’s
process for identifying hyperinflationary econo-
mies and evaluated the policy in relation to
hyperinflation accounting. Our audit procedures
included, among others:

•8We assessed and tested the indicators of
hyperinflation on the Zimbabwean economy
by corroborating these with industry reports
and our own understanding of the economy.

•8We recomputed and tested the hyperinflation
workings prepared by management by
evaluating the rationale for the economic
indicators included (such as the inflation rate,
cumulative inflation rate, consumer price
indices from various sources).

•8We tested the source data used by agreeing it
to supporting schedules.

•8We assessed the reasonability of the
assumptions used by comparing these to
externally available industry, financial and
economic data; and;

•8We tested restatement of the statement of
financial position and income statement items
for correct restatement in terms of IAS 29.

•8We assessed whether disclosures in the
financial statements appropriately reflected
the effects of the adoption of IAS 29.

•8We found that the inflation adjusted financial
statements have been properly restated in
terms of IAS 29.

Hyperinflation Accounting (High risk area and significant judgement)
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Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with
InternationalStandardsonAuditing(ISAs).Weare
independent of the Organisation in accordance
with the International Ethics Standards Board
for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (IESBA Code), together with the
ethical requirements thatare relevant toouraudit
of the financial statements in Zimbabwe, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBACode.
AspartofanauditinaccordancewithInternational
Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
- Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatementofthefinancialstatements,whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
organization’s internal control.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made bythe directors.
- Conclude on the appropriateness of the
directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the organization’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, futureevents orconditionsmay
cause the organization to cease to continue as a

Other Information

The Directors are responsible for the other
information. Other information does not include
the financial statements and our auditors’ report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not
expressanopinionoranyother formofassurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact.

Responsibilitiesof theDirectors for the
Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with International Financial
ReportingStandardsand, forsuch internalcontrol
as the directorsdetermine isnecessary toenable
the preparation of financial statements that are
free frommaterial misstatement, whether due to
fraud orerror.

Inpreparingthefinancialstatements,thedirectors
are responsible for assessing the organization’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
organization or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternativebut to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of theFinancial Statements

Ourobjectivesaretoobtainreasonableassurance
about whetherthe financialstatementsasa whole
arefreefrommaterialmisstatement,whetherdue
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurancebut is not aguarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements

Energy Regulatory Authority Act [Chapter 13:23]
In our opinion, the accompanying inflation
adjusted financial statements have in all material
respects, been properly prepared in compliance
with the requirements of and in the manner
required by the Energy Regulatory Authority
Act [Chapter 13:23] (paragraph 21(1), to comply
with International Accounting Standards when
keeping itsaccounting records.

_______________________________
Partner:Richard Mandeya
PAABPractisingnumber:0965
Baker Tilly Chartered Accountants (Zimbabwe)
Celestial Office Park, Unit D &HBlock Borrowdale
Road, Borrowdale, Harare

Date: 23 /06/2023

going concern.
- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, andwhether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactionsand events
in amanner that achieves fair presentation.
We communicate with the directors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.
From the matters communicated with those
charged with governance, we determine those
matters thatwere ofmost significance in theaudit
of thefinancial statementsof thecurrent yearand
are therefore the key auditmatters. We describe
thesematters in ourauditor’s reportunless lawor
regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstance,
we determine that a matter should not be
communicated inour reportbecause theadverse
consequences of doing so would reasonable be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.
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ASSETS

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 3
Right of use asset 4
Intangible assets 5
Investment property 6

Current assets
Inventory 7
Trade and other receivables 8
Cash and cash equivalents 9
Deferred Tax Asset 10

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Reserves
Retained income
Total equity

Non Current Liabilities
Long term liability
Deferred VAT liability 12

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 11
Current portion of deferred
VATliability
12
Lease liability 13
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

1,496,139,950
244,663,895
6,940,759

-
1,747,744,604

6,380,104
1,615,873,887
1,702,465,181
59,994,900

3,384,714,072
5,132,458,676

450,877,560
3,194,998,826
3,645,876,385

-

1,146,664,348

132,097,742
207,820,201

1,486,582,291
1,486,582,291

5,132,458,676

1,136,710,620
141,064,936
3,828,110

192,505,531
1,474,109,197

4,651,752
717,094,413
881,640,053

-
1,603,386,218
3,077,495,415

557,291,259
1,971,355,269

2,528,646,528

123,477,826

353,912,729

32,029,333
39,428,998

425,371,061
548,848,887

3,077,495,415

1,496,139,950
244,663,895
6,940,759

-
1,747,744,604

6,380,104
1,615,873,887
1,702,465,181
32,964,231

3,357,683,403
5,105,428,007

1,196,437,722
2,422,407,994
3,618,845,716

-

1,146,664,348

132,097,742
207,820,201

1,486,582,291
1,486,582,291

5,105,428,007

Notes

547,420,469
11,394,969
1,113,600

56,000,000
615,929,038

1,353,198
208,603,290
256,469,737

-
466,426,225
1,082,355,263

524,822,058
397,872,662
922,694,720

35,919,790

102,953,472

9,317,356
11,469,925

123,740,753
159,660,543

1,082,355,263

Statement of Financial Position

Inflation
Adjusted
2022
ZWL$

Inflation
Adjusted
2021
ZWL$

Historical
Cost
2022
ZWL$

Historical
Cost
2021
ZWL$

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 3
Right of use asset 4
Intangible assets 5
Investment property 6

Current assets
Inventory 7
Trade and other receivables 8
Cash and cash equivalents 9
Deferred Tax Asset 10

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Reserves
Retained income
Total equity

Non Current Liabilities
Long term liability
Deferred VAT liability 12

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 11
Current portion of deferred
VATliability
12
Lease liability 13
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

1,496,139,950
244,663,895
6,940,759

-
1,747,744,604

6,380,104
1,615,873,887
1,702,465,181
59,994,900

3,384,714,072
5,132,458,676

450,877,560
3,194,998,826
3,645,876,385

-

1,146,664,348

132,097,742
207,820,201

1,486,582,291
1,486,582,291

5,132,458,676

1,136,710,620
141,064,936
3,828,110

192,505,531
1,474,109,197

4,651,752
717,094,413
881,640,053

-
1,603,386,218
3,077,495,415

557,291,259
1,971,355,269

2,528,646,528

123,477,826

353,912,729

32,029,333
39,428,998

425,371,061
548,848,887

3,077,495,415

1,496,139,950
244,663,895
6,940,759

-
1,747,744,604

6,380,104
1,615,873,887
1,702,465,181
32,964,231

3,357,683,403
5,105,428,007

1,196,437,722
2,422,407,994
3,618,845,716

-

1,146,664,348

132,097,742
207,820,201

1,486,582,291
1,486,582,291

5,105,428,007

Notes

547,420,469
11,394,969
1,113,600

56,000,000
615,929,038

1,353,198
208,603,290
256,469,737

-
466,426,225
1,082,355,263

524,822,058
397,872,662
922,694,720

35,919,790

102,953,472

9,317,356
11,469,925

123,740,753
159,660,543

1,082,355,263

Statement of Financial Position

Inflation
Adjusted
2022
ZWL$

Inflation
Adjusted
2021
ZWL$

Historical
Cost
2022
ZWL$

Historical
Cost
2021
ZWL$

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment
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Intangible assets

Investment property

Current assets

Inventory

Trade and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Deferred TaxAsset

Total assets

EQUITY ANDLIABILITIES

Equity

Reserves

Retained income

Total equity

Non CurrentLiabilities

Long termliability

Deferred VAT liability

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Current portion of deferred VAT liability

Lease liability

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

12

11

12

13
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1,747,744,604

6,380,104

1,615,873,887

1,702,465,181

32,964,231

3,357,683,403

5,105,428,007

1,196,437,722

2,308,795,577

3,505,233,299

-

1,260,276,765

132,097,742

207,820,201

1,600,194,708

1,600,194,708

5,105,428,007

547,420,469

11,394,969

1,113,600
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615,929,038

1,353,198

208,603,290

256,469,737

-

466,426,225

1,082,355,263

524,822,058

397,872,662

922,694,720

35,919,790

102,953,472

9,317,356

11,469,925

123,740,753

159,660,543

1,082,355,263

547,420,469

11,394,969

1,113,600

56,000,000

615,929,038

1,353,198

208,603,290

256,469,737

-

466,426,225

1,082,355,263

524,822,058

397,872,662

922,694,720

35,919,790

102,953,472

9,317,356

11,469,925

123,740,753

159,660,543

1,082,355,263

Notes

Statement of Financial Position

Inflation
Adjusted
2022
ZWL$

Inflation
Adjusted
2021
ZWL$

Historical
Cost
2022
ZWL$

Historical
Cost
2021
ZWL$
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Revenue
Other income
Operating expenses
Monetary gain/(loss)
Operating (loss)/surplus for
the year

(Deficit)/Surplus for the
year

Other Comprehensive
Income
Revaluation surplus/(loss)

Total comprehensive
income/(loss)

Total Comprehensive
Income/(loss) attributable
to:
ZERA
Rural Electrification Fund

14
15
16

5,160,850,468
1,730,528,795

(4,383,526,108)
(1,517,879,549)
989,973,606

989,973,606

(106,413,699)

883,559,907

1,003,617,441
(120,057,534)

883,559,907

3,759,087,997
198,207,304

(2,428,676,267)
(671,866,868)
856,752,166

856,752,166

321,047,075

1,177,799,241

1,063,941,524
113,857,717

1,177,799,241

3,658,132,754
1,705,358,580

(3,338,956,003)
-

2,024,535,331

2,024,535,331

671,615,664

2,696,150,995

2,582,538,579
113,612,416

2,696,150,995

845,199,015
72,027,003

(567,163,723)
-

350,062,295

350,062,295

311,754,028

661,816,323

633,067,252
28,749,071

661,816,323

N
o
te
(s
)

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Inflation
Adjusted
2022
ZWL$

Inflation
Adjusted
2021
ZWL$

Historical
Cost
2022
ZWL$

Historical
Cost
2021
ZWL$
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Inflation Adjusted

Balance at 01 January 2021

Surplus/ (Deficit) for the year

Revaluation surplus

Transfer to Rural Electrification FundAccount

Total changes

Balance at 31 December 2021

Surplus for the year

Revaluation Surplus/ (Deficit)

Transfer to Rural Electrification FundAccount

Total Change

Balance at 31 December 2022

236,244,184

-

-

236,244,184

-

-

-

-

236,244,184

-

-

321,047,075

321,047,075

321,047,075

-

(106,413,699)

-

(106,413,699)

214,633,376

236,244,184

-

321,047,075

321,047,075

557,291,259

-

(106,413,699)

-

(106,413,699)

450,877,560

1,228,460,820

856,752,166

(113,857,717)

742,894,449

1,971,355,269

989,973,606

-

120,057,534

1,110,031,140

3,081,386,409

1,464,705,004

856,752,166

321,047,075

(113,857,717)

1,063,941,524

2,528,646,528

989,973,606

(106,413,699)

120,057,534

1,003,617,440

3,532,263,968

17

17

Notes

Statement of Changes in Equity

Non
Distributable
Reserve
ZWL$

Revaluation
Reserve
ZWL$

Total reserves
ZWL$

Retained
Income
ZWL$

Total equity
ZWL$

Historical Cost

Balance at 01 January 2021

Surplus for the year

Revaluation surplus

Transfer to Rural Electrification FundAccount

Total Changes

Balance at 31 December 2021

Balance at 01 January 2022

Surplus for the year

Revaluation surplus

Transfer to Rural Electrification FundAccount

Total comprehensive income for theyear

Balance at 31 December 2022

794,854

-

-

-

794,854

794,854

-

-

-

794,854

212,273,175

-

311,754,028

311,754,028

524,027,203

524,027,203

-

671,615,664

671,615,664

1,195,642,867

213,068,029

-

311,754,028

311,754,028

524,822,057

524,822,057

-

671,615,664

671,615,664

1,196,437,722

76,559,438

350,062,295

-

(28,749,071)

350,062,295

397,872,662

397,872,662

2,024,535,331

-

(113,612,416)

1,910,922,915

2,308,795,577

289,627,468

350,062,295

311,754,028

(28,749,071)

661,816,324

922,694,720

922,694,720

2,024,535,331

671,615,664

(113,612,416)

2,582,538,579

3,505,233,299

17

17

Notes

Statement of Changes in Equity

Non
Distributable
Reserve
ZWL$

Revaluation
Reserve
ZWL$

Total reserves
ZWL$

Retained
Income
ZWL$

Total equity
ZWL$
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Cashflow from operating activities

Surplus/(Deficit) for the year

Adjustment for:

Depreciation

Loss on Asset disposal orassets scrapped

Interest received

Fair valueadjustment

Non cashadjustments

Rural Electricification Fund Transfer

Operating Income before working capital changes

Working CapitalMovements

Increase /(decrease) in payables

(Increase)/decrease in receivables

(Increase)/decrease in inventory

VAT andwithholding tax liability

VAT Receivable

Sub total

Cash generated from operating activities

Finance Costs

Interest received

Net financingcosts

Cash flow from operations

Investing Activities

Purchase of tangible non currentassets

Change in right of UseAsset

Proceeds from sale of assets

Purchase of intangible assets

Net cashflow from Investing

Net cash inflow/(outflow) before financing

Financing activities

Lease liability

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing

Increase /(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ofyear

Cash and cash equivalents atend of year

Represented by:

Cash and bank balances

Cash and cash equivalents atend of year

989,973,606

192,977,615

801,175

(39,639,089)

-

-

120,057,534

1,264,170,841

906,364,036

(898,779,474)

(1,728,352)

(23,409,417)

(59,994,900)

(77,548,107)

1,186,622,734

39,639,089

39,639,089

1,226,261,823

(430,871,305)

(141,698,938)

502,665

(1,760,320)

(573,827,898)

652,433,924

168,391,203

168,391,203

820,825,128

881,640,053

1,702,465,181

1,702,465,181

1,702,465,181

856,752,166

172,209,725

16,146,027

(2,291,548)

(56,578,242)

(98,827,770)

887,410,358

17,324,062

(107,603,249)

(2,137,719)

(70,463,312)

-

(162,880,218)

724,530,140

695,024

695,024

725,225,165

(67,919,403)

(24,372,956)

51,605,061

-

(40,687,298)

684,537,868

13,243,428

13,243,428

697,781,296

183,858,757

881,640,053

881,640,053

881,640,053

2,024,535,331

120,156,996

396,946

(21,779,719)

-

-

(113,612,416)

2,009,697,138

1,157,323,293

(1,407,270,597)

(5,026,906)

86,860,596

(32,964,231)

(201,077,845)

1,808,619,293

21,779,719

21,779,719

1,830,399,012

(320,939,298)

(258,783,154)

343,857

(1,375,250)

(580,753,845)

1,249,645,168

196,350,276

196,350,276

1,445,995,444

256,469,737

1,702,465,181

1,702,465,181

1,702,465,181

350,062,295

38,122,900

3,839,299

(549,835)

(31,399,999)

-

(28,749,071)

331,325,589

32,797,668

(98,298,117)

(898,210)

4,341,211

-

(62,057,448)

269,268,141

549,835

549,835

269,817,976

(18,132,344)

(22,479,841)

613,395

-

(39,998,790)

229,819,186

10,442,009

10,442,009

240,261,196

16,208,541

256,469,737

256,469,737

256,469,737

9

9

Notes

Statement of Cash Flows

Inflation
Adjusted
2022
ZWL$

Inflation
Adjusted
2021
ZWL$

Historical
Cost
2022
ZWL$

Historical
Cost
2021
ZWL$
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at the endof the reportingperiod.
ZERA adopted the Zimbabwe consumer price
index (CPI) as the general price index to restate
transactions and balances as appropriate.

The conversion factors used to restate the
organisation’s financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2022are as follows:

The main procedures applied for the above-
mentioned restatementsare as follows:

Financialstatementspreparedinthecurrencyofa
hyperinflationary economy are restated in terms
of the measuringunit current at the statementof
financial position date, and corresponding figures
for theperiod are restated in the sameterms.

Monetary assets and liabilities that are carried at
amounts current at the financialposition date are
not restated because they are already expressed
in terms of the monetary unit current at the
financial position date.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
not carried at amounts current at the financial
position date and components of shareholders’
equity are restated by applying the relevant
conversion factors.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at the financial position date
are translated to Zimbabwe dollarsat the foreign
exchange rate ruling at that date. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies, which are stated at historical cost,
are translated into Zimbabwean dollars at the
foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the
transaction.

Accountingpolicies

1. REPORTINGENTITY
NATUREOFBUSINESS

ZERA is a parastatal established by an Act of
Parliament, the Energy Regulatory Authority
Act (Chapter 13:23) and is wholly owned by the
Government of Zimbabwe.Themandate ofZERA
is to regulate theenergy industry.

2.BASISOFPREPARATION

2.1StatementofCompliance

These financial statements for the year ended 31
December2022,havebeenpreparedonthegoing
concern basis in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and
International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee (‘IFRIC’) interpretations and in the
manner required by the Energy Regulatory
Authority Act (Chapter 13:23).

2.2 Application of IAS 29- Financial
Reporting inHyperinflationEconomy

The Public Accountants and Auditors Board
(PAAB) issued a pronouncement inOctober 2019
prescribing application of inflation accounting for
reporting periods ended on or after 1 July 2019.
The pronouncement was issued pursuant to a
broad market consensus within the accounting
and auditing professions that the Zimbabwe
economy had met the characteristics of a
hyperinflationary economy. IAS 29 discourages
the publication of historical results as the inflation
adjusted results are the primary financial results.
However, the historical cost results are included
as supplementary informationto meetotheruser
requirements.

As a result, the auditors have not expressed an
opinion on this historical information. In order to
account for the rapid loss in thepurchasingpower
of the local currency, hyperinflation accounting
principles require transactions and balances to
be stated in terms of the measuring unit current

31 December 2022

31 December 2021

31 December 2020

Dates

13,672.9069

3,977.4586

2,474.5106

Indices
Conversion
Factor

1

3.4376

5.5255
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(2021 $ Nil). ZERA changed the useful life of the
following assets effective 1July 2021;

Laptops and iPads from 2 years to 3years.

2.5 New and amended IFRS that are
effective for thecurrentyear

The entity didnot adopt anynew standards in the
current year.

2.6Revenue recognition

As per IFRS 15, revenue is recognized on accrual
basis and the revenuecategories of the entityare
as follows;

2.6.1Electricityannual levies

Levies are charged at 1% of electricity sales
to electricity generating, transmission and
distributing companies in terms of Statutory
Instrument number 6 of 2008.

2.6.2Electricity licenseapplication fees

License application fees are charged to
all companies and individuals who submit
applications to obtain any formof trading license
in termsof theapplicable regulationpromulgated
through statutory instrument.

2.6.3 License fees

Electricity License fees are charged to new
companies who are into the generation,
transmission and distributing companies in terms
of theapplicable regulationpromulgated through
statutory instrument.

Liquefied petroleum gas (LPG) license fees are
charged in terms of fees promulgated through
statutory instrument.

License fees for the Petroleum sub-sector vary
depending onthecategoryof businessas follows:
(a)Blending
(b)Procurement
(c)Production
(d)Retail
(e)Wholesalers

Comparative financial statements are restated
using general inflation indices in terms of the
measuring unit, current at the latest balance
sheet date.

All items in the incomestatement are restatedby
applying the relevant month, yearly average or
year-end conversion factor.

The effects of inflation on the net monetary
position of the organisation are included in the
income statement as a monetary gain/(loss)
adjustment (IAS 29.9).

2.3Presentationand functional
currency

The financial statements are expressed in
Zimbabwean dollars (‘’ZWL$’’) which was both
the functional and presentation currency of the
organisation for the year ended 31 December
2022.

2.4 Critical accounting judgments
assumptionsandestimates

In preparing the financial statements,
management is required to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the amounts
presented in the financial statements and related
disclosures. The use of available information and
the application of judgment is inherent in the
formationofestimates.Actual results inthefuture
may differ from these estimates, which may be
material to the financial statements. Estimates
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revision to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which the
estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected. Significant judgments include the
following:

2.4.2 Useful lives and residual values of
property, plant, andequipment

ZERA assesses useful lives and residual values
of property, plant, and equipment each year
considering past experience and technology
changes. The depreciation rates are set out in
note 2.7. The residual values for the year were
assessed and have been noted as adequate.
The value for this year has been assessed as $Nil
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Depreciation commenceswhentheasset isready
for intended use and it ceases when the asset is
no longer inuse or isdisposed. Theresidualvalue,
useful life and depreciation method of each
asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period. If the expectations differ from previous
estimates, the change is accounted for as a
change in accounting estimate. The gain or loss
arising fromderecognition of an item of property
and equipment is included in profit or loss when
the item is derecognized. The gain or loss arising
from derecognition of an item of property and
equipment is determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and
the carryingamount of the item.

Impairmentofassets assessment

The carrying amounts of ZERA assets are
reviewed at each financial reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
impairment loss is recognized in the statement
of comprehensive incomewhenever the carrying

2.6.4 Interest received

Revenue is recognised as the interest accrued in
line with IFRS 9.

2.7Property, plant, andequipment

Property, plant, and equipment are stated in the
statement of financial position at their revalued
amounts, being the fair value at the date of
revaluation.

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or
construct an item ofproperty andequipment and
costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace
part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is
recognised in the carrying amount of an item of
property and equipment, the carrying amount of
the replacedpart is derecognised.

Property, plant, and equipment are depreciated
on the straight-line basis over their expected
useful lives to their estimated residual value.

Depreciation on revalued assets is recognised
in profit or loss. On the subsequent sale or
retirementofarevaluedproperty, theattributable
revaluation surplus remaining in the property
revaluation reserve is transferred directly to
retained earnings.

Properties in the course of construction for
administrative purposes are carried at revalued
amounts. Cost includes professional fees and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs. Depreciation
of these assets, determined on the same basis
as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use. Land is
not depreciated.

Depreciation is provided for on a straight-line
basis over the assets’ expected economic useful
lives onthe followingrates:

Item Depreciation Rates

Furniture and fixtures 20%

IT equipment 33.3%- 50%

Buildings 2.5%

La-nd

Motor vehicles 20%

Office equipment 20%

Office partitions 4<%

Other property & 33.3%-50%
equipment
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All employees contribute to the National Social
Security Authority pension scheme and the
amounts are included in the determination of
surplus for the year.

2.12Corporate tax

ZERA is exempt from paying corporate tax in
accordance with the Income Tax Act (Chapter
23:06).

2.13 Inventory

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost is calculated using the
weighted averageprice method.

2.14Foreigncurrency transactions

Transactions in foreign currency are translated
into United States dollars at rates of exchange
prevailing at date of transaction. At each
statement of financial position date, monetary
assets and liabilities thataredominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the rates prevailing
on the statement of financial position date. Gains
and losses arising on exchange are included in
the statement of comprehensive income for the
period.

2.15Financial instruments

Classification
ZERA classifies financial assets and financial
liabilities into the followingcategories:
-Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss – designated.
-Loans and receivables.
-Financial liabilitiesmeasured atamortized cost.

Classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial instruments were obtained /
incurred and takes place at initial recognition.
Classification is re-assessed on an annual basis,
except for financial assets designated as at fair
value through profit or loss, which shall not be
classified out of the fair value through profit or
loss category.

Initial recognitionandmeasurement
Financial instruments are recognized initially

amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount.

2.8 Investmentproperty

Investment property is initially recognizedat cost
and subsequently measuredat fair value atevery
statement of financial positiondate.

2.9 Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired aremeasuredon initial
recognition at cost. After initial recognition, the
assets arecarried at revalued amounts,being fair
value at the date of revaluation. The Authority
adopted the revaluation model in 2021 and all
assets are carried at fair valueas at 31 December
2022.

2.10Provisions

Provisions are recognized when ZERA has a
present legal or constructive obligation because
of past events, if it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate of the amount can bemade.

2.11Employeebenefits

Employee benefits are the consideration given
by ZERA in exchange for services rendered by
employees. In summary the benefits are;

Short-termbenefits
Benefits earned by employees under normal
employment terms including salaries, bonuses
and leave pay. These are expensed as earned
and accordingly provisions are made for unpaid
bonuses and leave pay.

Post- employmentbenefits
Contributions to Old Mutual Pension Fund and
Group Life Cover are expensed as and when
incurred.

Item Amortization rates

Computer software 33.33%

ZERA website 20.00%
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Impairment losses arereversedwhen anincrease
in the financial asset’s recoverable amount can
be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognized, subject to
the restriction that the carrying amount of the
financial asset at the date that the impairment
is reversed shall not exceed what the carrying
amount would have been had the impairment
not been recognized. Reversals of impairment
losses are recognized in profit or loss except for
equity investments classified as available-for-
sale. Impairment lossesare alsonotsubsequently
reversedforavailable-for-saleequity investments
which are held at cost because fair value was
not determinable. Where financial assets are
impaired through use of an allowance account,
the amount of the loss is recognized in profit or
loss withinoperatingexpenses.When suchassets
are written off, the write off is made against
the relevant allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited againstoperating expenses.

Loans todirectors, managersand employees
These financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables.

Tradeandother receivables
Trade receivables are measured at initial
recognition at fair value and are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest ratemethod. Appropriate allowances for
estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognized
in profit or loss when there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired. Significant financial
difficulties of the debtor, probability that
the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganization, and default or delinquency in
paymentsareconsideredindicatorsthatthetrade
receivable is impaired. The allowance recognized
is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account, and
the amount of the loss is recognized in profit or
loss within operating expenses. When a trade
receivable is uncollectable, it is writtenoff against
the allowanceaccount for trade receivables.

when ZERA becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments. ZERA classifies
financial instruments, or their component parts,
on initialrecognition asa financialasset, afinancial
liabilityoranequity instrument inaccordancewith
the substance of the contractual arrangement.
Financial instruments are measured initially at
fair value, except for equity investments for
which a fair value is not determinable, which are
measured at cost and are classified as available-
for-sale financial assets.

For financial instruments that are not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs
are included in the initial measurement of the
instrument. Transaction costs on financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss are
recognized in profit or loss.

Subsequentmeasurement
Financial instruments at fair value through profit
or loss are subsequently measured at fair value,
with gains and losses arising from changes in
fair value being included in profit or loss for
the period. Net gains or losses on the financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss
includes interest. Loans and receivables are
subsequently measured at amortized cost, using
the effective interest method, less accumulated
impairment losses.

Impairment of financial assets
At each reporting date ZERA assesses all financial
assets,otherthanthoseat fairvaluethroughprofit
or loss, to determine whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets has been impaired. For amounts
due to ZERA, significant financial difficulties
of the debtor, probability that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy and default of payments are
all considered indicators of impairment. In the
case of equity securities classified as available for
sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is considered
an indicator of impairment. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognized in profit or loss
- is removed from equity as a reclassification
adjustment to other comprehensive income and
recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses are
recognized in profit or loss.
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the total amount of cash paid into a principal
portion (presentedwithin financingactivities) and
interest (presented within financing activities) in
the Statement of Cash Flows.

For short-term leases (lease term of 12 months
or less) and leases of low-value assets (such as
tablet and personal computers, small items of
office furniture and telephones), the Authority
recognize a lease expenseon a straight-line basis
as permitted by IFRS 16 through the profit or loss.

2.17ValueAddedTax (VAT)

VAT is accounted for on accrual basis but
remittance to Zimbabwe Revenue Authority
(ZIMRA) is on cash basis. This was after ZIMRA
approved for the use of the cash basis. The
differencewhich arises between
accrual and cash basis are classified under
current assets as VAT receivable and under non-
current liabilities as VAT Payable. However, there
is no obligation tosettle it with ZIMRA,the liability
will clear when the cash amount received from
electricity receivablesexceeds theinvoiced value.
ZERA had collected amounts from which VAT is
due to ZIMRA and these are classified under
current liabilities in the Statement of Financial
Position.

Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against operating
expenses in profit or loss.

Trade and otherreceivables are classifiedas loans
and receivables.

Tradeandotherpayables
Trade payablesare initiallymeasured at fair value,
and are subsequently measured at amortized
cost, using the effective interest ratemethod.

Cashandcashequivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits and other short-
term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
These are initially and subsequently recorded at
fair value.

2.16Leases

The Authorityaccounts for leases in linewith IFRS
16 principles. The Authority recognize right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities in the Statement
of Financial Position, initially measured at the
present value of the future lease payments.
Depreciation of right-of-use assets and interest
on lease liabilities for the reporting period is
recorded in profit or loss.The Authority separates
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Furniture and fixtures
IT Equipment
Land
Motor vehicles
Office equipment
Office partitions
Other assets
W.I.P building
Right of use asset

Total

Inflation Adjusted Inflation Adjusted

51,311,780
79,264,531

150,000,000
423,559,022
4,623,934
106,476,174
110,628,817
570,275,692

1,496,139,950

Cost or
Revaluation

51,311,780
79,264,531

150,000,000
423,559,022
4,623,934
106,476,174
110,628,817
570,275,692

1,496,139,950

Carrying
Value

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-

Accumulated
Depreciation

2022

66,786,384
95,714,762
65,290,510
108,673,759
26,158,597
38,364,668
134,502,061
601,219,879

1,136,710,620

Cost or
Revaluation

66,786,384
95,714,762
65,290,510
108,673,759
26,158,597
38,364,668
134,502,061
601,219,879

1,136,710,620

Carrying
Value

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-

Accumulated
Depreciation

2021

Property and Equipment

Furniture andfixtures

IT Equipment

Land

Motor vehicles

Office equipment

Office partitions

Other assets

W.I.P building

Total

Reconciliation of Property and equipment -2022

66,786,384

95,714,762

65,290,510

108,673,759

26,158,597

38,364,668

134,502,061

601,219,879

1,136,710,620

Opening
Balance

(9,343,036)

(36,065,905)

84,709,490

139,446,073

(22,512,680)

(141,420,290)

(49,519,848)

(74,094,062)

(108,800,258)

Revaluation

8,343,107

51,782,840

-

237,608,524

2,371,190

21,689,364

65,926,405

43,149,875

430,871,305

Additions

-

(1,191,347)

(112,494)

(1,303,841)

Disposals

(14,474,675)

(30,975,819)

-

(62,169,334)

(1,393,173)

(4,663,099)

(40,167,307)

-

(153,843,407)

51,311,780

79,264,531

150,000,000

423,559,022

4,623,934

106,476,174

110,628,817

570,275,692

1,496,139,950

Total

-

-

-

-

-

192,505,531

-

-

192,505,531

Transfers In7 Depreciation

Property and Equipment
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Furniture andfixtures

IT Equipment

Land

Motor vehicles

Office equipment

Office partitions

Other assets

W.I.P building

Total

Reconciliation of Property and equipment -2021

42,918,228

36,423,167

42,155,762

105,978,991

3,023,849

15,229,920

82,831,273

578,085,131

906,646,321

Opening
Balance

35,919,092

43,282,889

23,134,748

81,453,144

24,348,534

23,529,204

66,045,310

23,134,748

320,847,669

Revaluation

733,408

36,496,863

-

1,601,522

-

-

29,087,610

-

67,919,403

Additions

-

(340,016)

-

(22,041,502)

-

-

(551,570)

-

(22,933,088)

Disposals

(12,784,344)

(20,148,141)

-

(58,318,396)

(1,213,786)

(394,456)

(42,910,562)

-

(135,769,685)

66,786,384

95,714,762

65,290,510

108,673,759

26,158,597

38,364,668

134,502,061

601,219,879

1,136,710,620

Total

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Depreciation

Property and Equipment

Furniture and fixtures
IT Equipment
Land
Motor vehicles
Office equipment
Office partitions
Other assets
W.I.P building

Total

Historical Cost Property and Equipment2Historical Cost Property and Equipment

51,311,780
79,264,531

150,000,000
423,559,022
4,623,934
106,476,174
110,628,817
570,275,692

1,496,139,950

Cost or
Revaluation

51,311,780
79,264,531

150,000,000
423,559,022
4,623,934
106,476,174
110,628,817
570,275,692

1,496,139,950

Carrying
Value

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-

Accumulated
Depreciation

2022

25,428,208
27,721,433

126,000,000
112,858,685
1,201,291

4,684,748
39,526,104

210,000,000

547,420,469

Cost or
Revaluation

25,428,208
27,721,433

126,000,000
112,858,685
1,201,291

4,684,748
39,526,104

210,000,000

547,420,469

Carrying
Value

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-

Accumulated
Depreciation

2021

Property and Equipment
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Furniture andfixtures

IT Equipment

Land

Motor vehicles

Office equipment

Office partitions

Other assets

W.I.P building

Total

Reconciliation of Property and equipment -2021

11,500,104

7,836,100

57,400,000

56,508,000

547,254

2,134,164

14,990,731

98,400,001

249,316,354

Opening
Balance

Historical
Cost 2021

16,608,781

10,870,600

68,600,000

72,613,661

922,943

2,633,635

26,812,654

111,599,999

310,662,273

Revaluation

184,077

10,677,029

-

336,734

-

-

-

6,934,503

-

18,132,343

Additions

-

(71,427)

-

(5,248,000)

-

-

(143,446)

-

(5,462,873)

Disposals

(2,864,754)

(1,590,869)

-

(11,351,710)

(268,906)

(83,051)

(7,705,690)

-

(23,864,980)

25,428,208

27,721,433

126,000,000

112,858,685

1,201,291

4,684,748

39,526,104

210,000,000

547,420,469

Total

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Derecognition<Depreciation

Property and Equipment

Furniture andfixtures

IT Equipment

Land

Motor vehicles

Office equipment

Office partitions

Other assets

W.I.P building

Total

Reconciliation of Property and equipment -2022

25,428,208

27,721,433

126,000,000

112,858,685

1,201,291

4,684,748

39,526,104

210,000,000

547,420,469

Opening
Balance

Historical
Cost 2022

29,551,883

38,864,394

24,000,000

180,832,983

2,888,005

27,666,974

42,657,608

320,154,774

666,616,621

Revaluation

5,533,132

32,906,531

-

167,405,479

1,371,723

21,436,121

52,165,394

40,120,918

320,939,298

Additions

-

(669,165)

-

-

-

-

(71,640)

-

(740,805)

Disposals

(9,201,443)

(19,558,662)

-

(37,538,125)

(837,085)

(3,311,669)

(23,648,649)

-

(94,095,633)

51,311,780

79,264,531

150,000,000

423,559,022

4,623,934

106,476,174

110,628,817

570,275,692

-

1,496,139,950

Total

-

-

-

-

-

56,000,000

-

-

56,000,000

Transfers In7 Depreciation

Property and Equipment
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Right of use asset

Total

Inflation adjusted Inflation adjusted

Cost or
Revaluation

Carrying
Value

Accumulated
Depreciation

2022

Cost or
Revaluation

141,064,936

141,064,936

Carrying
Value

Accumulated
Depreciation

2021

RightOf UseAsset

282,763,874

282,763,874

244,663,895

244,663,895

(38,099,979)

(38,099,979)

177,432,965

177,432,965

(36,368,029)

(36,368,029)

Right of use asset

Total

Reconciliation of Right of use asset -2022

Opening
Balance RevaluationAdditions Disposals

244,663,895
-

244,663,895

TotalDepreciation

RightOf UseAsset

141,064,936

141,064,936

-

-

141,698,938

141,698,938

-

-

(38,099,979)

(38,099,979)

Inflation
Adjusted 2022

Right of use asset

Total

Reconciliation of Right of use asset -2021

Opening
Balance RevaluationAdditions Disposals

141,064,936
-

141,064,936

TotalDepreciation

RightOf UseAsset

19,168,773

19,168,773

-

-

158,264,192

158,264,192

-

-

(36,368,029)

(36,368,029)

Inflation
Adjusted 2021
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Right of use asset

Total

Reconciliation of Right of use asset -2021

Opening
Balance RevaluationAdditions Disposals

11,394,969
-

11,394,969

TotalDepreciation

RightOf UseAsset

787,818

787,818

-

-

24,852,669

24,852,669

-

-

(14,245,518)

(14,245,518)

Historical
Cost 2021

Right of use asset

Total

Reconciliation of Right of use asset -2022

Opening
Balance RevaluationAdditions Disposals

244,663,895
-

244,663,895

TotalDepreciation

RightOf UseAsset

11,394,969

11,394,969

-

-

258,783,155

258,783,155

-

-

(25,514,229)

(25,514,229)

Historical
Cost 2022

Right of use asset

Total

Historical Cost

Cost or
Revaluation

Carrying
Value

Accumulated
Depreciation

Cost or
Revaluation

11,394,969

11,394,969

Carrying
Value

Accumulated
Depreciation

RightOf UseAsset

270,178,124

270,178,124

244,663,895

244,663,895

(25,514,229)

(25,514,229)

23,267,659

23,267,659

(11,872,690)

(11,872,690)

Right of
use asset 2022
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Computer software
ZERAwebsite

Total

Inflation Adjusted

2022 2021

Cost or
Revaluation

Carrying
ValueAmortization

Cost or
Revaluation

2,281,190
1,546,920

3,828,110

Carrying
ValueAmortization

IntangibleAssets

6,119,959
820,800

6,940,759

6,119,959
820,800

6,940,759

-
-

-

2,281,190
1,546,920

3,828,110

-
-

-

Historical
Cost 2022

Computer software
ZERAwebsite

Total

Reconciliation of Intangible assets -2022

Opening
Balance RevaluationAdditions Disposals

6,119,959
820,800

-
6,940,759

TotalAmortization

IntangibleAssets

2,281,190
1,546,920

3,828,110

3,039,230
(652,671)

2,386,558

1,760,320
-

1,760,320

(960,780)
(73,449)

(1,034,229)

-
-

-

Inflation
Adjusted 2022

Computer software
ZERAwebsite

Total

Reconciliation of Intangible assets -2021

Opening
Balance RevaluationAdditions Disposals

2,281,190
1,546,920

3,828,110

TotalAmortization

IntangibleAssets

3,372,133
328,582

3,700,714

(1,034,157)
1,233,563

199,406

-
-

-

(56,786)
(15,225)

(72,011)

-
-

-
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Computer software
ZERAwebsite

Total

Reconciliation of Intangible assets -2021

Opening
Balance RevaluationAdditions Disposals

663,600
450,000

1,113,600

TotalAmortization

IntangibleAssets

20,804
13,443

34,247

650,239
441,516

1,091,755

-
-

-

(7,443)
(4,959)

(12,402)

-
-

-

Historical
Cost 2021

Computer software
ZERAwebsite

Total

Reconciliation of Intangible assets -2022

Opening
Balance RevaluationAdditions Disposals

6,119,959
820,800

6,940,759

TotalAmortization

IntangibleAssets

663,600
450,000

1,113,600

4,407,149
591,894

4,999,043

1,375,250
-

1,375,250

(326,040)
(221,094)

(547,134)

-
-

-

Historical
Cost 2022

Computer software
ZERAwebsite

Total

2022 2021

Cost or
Revaluation

Carrying
ValueAmortization

Cost or
Revaluation

663,600
450,000

1,113,600

Carrying
ValueAmortization

IntangibleAssets

6,119,959
820,800

6,940,759

6,119,959
820,800

6,940,759

-
-

-

663,600
450,000

1,113,600

-
-

-

Historical Cost
Intangible assets
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6 Investment Property

Opening balance

Fair valueadjustment

Derecognition of Investment Property

Closing balance

7 Inventory

Cartridges

Cleaning materials

Consumables

Promotional material

Seals

Stationery

Teas andbeverages

Total

8 Trade andOther Receivables

Trade receivables

Prepayments

Other receivables

Total

Trade ReceivablesReconciliation

Gross tradereceivables

Allowance for credit losses

Total

9 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Bank balances

Cash onhand

Total

10 VAT Receivable

VAT based on accruals concept

VAT Receivable

11 Trade andOther Payables

Trade and other payables

Other accruals and provisions

Deferred income

Total

12 VAT Payable

VAT based on accruals concept

Outstanding Cash VAT due and payable to

ZIMRA

VAT Payable

Non-Current portion

Current portion

Total

192,505,531

-

(192,505,531)

-

4,126,460

21,417

559,824

396,587

770,000

505,816

-

6,380,104

1,285,387,622

422,639,735

-

1,708,027,357

1,708,027,357

(92,153,470)

1,615,873,887

1,702,465,181

-

1,702,465,181

59,994,900

59,994,900

259,304,713

230,368,778

770,603,274

1,260,276,765

-

132,097,742

132,097,742

-

132,097,742

132,097,742

135,927,289

56,578,242

192,505,531

2,795,775

15,658

585,695

135,854

-

974,202

144,568

4,651,752

1,538,416,660

12,253,685

74,678,822

1,625,349,167

1,625,349,167

(908,254,754)

717,094,413

881,640,053

-

881,640,053

-

-

188,530,739

51,229,768

114,152,222

353,912,729

123,477,826

32,029,333

155,507,159

123,477,826

32,029,333

155,507,159

56,000,000

-

(56,000,000)

-

4,126,460

21,417

559,824

396,587

770,000

505,816

-

6,380,104

1,285,387,622

422,639,735

-

1,708,027,357

1,708,027,357

(92,153,470)

1,615,873,887

1,702,465,181

-

1,702,465,181

32,964,231

32,964,231

259,304,713

230,368,778

770,603,274

1,260,276,765

-

132,097,742

132,097,742

-

132,097,742

132,097,742

24,600,001

31,399,999

56,000,000

813,293

4,555

170,379

39,520

-

283,396

42,055

1,353,198

447,526,533

3,564,606

21,724,124

472,815,263

472,815,263

(264,211,973)

208,603,290

256,469,737

-

256,469,737

-

54,843,730

14,902,777

33,206,965

102,953,472

35,919,790

9,317,356

45,237,146

35,919,790

9,317,356

45,237,146

Notes of the Finanacial Statements

Inflation
Adjusted
2022
ZWL$

Inflation
Adjusted
2021
ZWL$

Historical
Cost
2022
ZWL$

Historical
Cost
2021
ZWL$
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13 Lease Liability

Current liability

Non-current liability

Total

14 Revenue

Electricity annual levies

Electricity licenses application fees

Electricity licenses fees

Liquid petroleum gas license fees

Petroleum licenses fees

Total

15 Other income

Fair value adjustment on investmentproperty

Insurance proceeds

Interest received

Loan administrationcommission

Miscellaneous

Unrealized gain on Foreign CurrencyAccount

Rental income

Tender income

Training registration fees

Foreign currency exchange gain

Decrease in allowance for credit losses

Total

16 Operating expenses

Audit fees

Bank charges

Board fees

Computer expenses

Consulting and professional fees

Consumables

Corporate social responsibility and donations

Depreciation andamortisation

Employee costs

Entertainment

Foreign currency exchange loss

Impairment and loss on de-recognitionof assets

Insurance

Interest on lease

Lease rentals on operating lease

Loss onrevaluation

Motor vehicleexpenses

Postage

Printing andstationery

Promotions, advertising and publicity

Repairs andmaintenance and officeadministration

Research anddevelopment

Subscriptions

Telephone andfax

Travel external

Travel local

Workshops andseminars

Total

207,820,201

-

207,820,201

4,105,854,438

12,891,279

36,842,134

112,228,265

893,034,352

5,160,850,468

-

37,222

39,639,089

20,479

20,501,897

1,229,952,064

-

9,038,161

235,325,956

196,013,928

1,730,528,795

3,056,311

101,546,962

13,868,921

27,094,715

210,359,559

13,684,602

13,898,383

192,977,615

1,649,169,104

5,553,857

-

801,175

41,162,898

4,903,914

80,892,220

-

181,020,975

869,261

27,046,932

178,844,573

448,988,724

127,741,244

73,354,495

95,882,737

209,021,083

300,857,603

380,928,245

4,383,526,108

39,428,998

-

39,428,998

2,648,029,027

18,968,209

58,139,427

72,784,946

961,166,388

3,759,087,997

56,578,242

413,027

2,291,548

16,617

5,076,178

130,627,884

995,865

2,207,942

-

-

198,207,304

3,489,225

33,285,581

12,413,118

11,182,388

90,778,414

5,647,349

20,781,306

172,209,725

1,222,016,199

2,227,939

40,678,595

16,146,027

27,530,721

5,568,470

46,036,168

-

88,129,936

77,260

13,519,096

91,544,524

243,530,879

5,852,020

55,290,095

68,145,782

9,432,183

75,513,275

67,649,991

2,428,676,267

207,820,201

-

207,820,201

3,195,978,270

9,427,818

31,120,952

61,958,588

359,647,126

3,658,132,754

-

35,700

21,779,719

11,252

19,815,040

1,229,952,064

-

8,726,345

252,979,957

172,058,503

1,705,358,580

1,174,062

84,092,267

9,511,633

21,924,013

136,981,601

10,884,632

11,964,325

120,156,996

1,254,090,891

4,771,645

-

396,946

28,047,232

3,752,855

67,498,044

-

137,057,498

302,165

20,581,482

122,265,103

351,610,548

109,312,867

56,285,034

69,215,933

162,994,680

231,313,608

322,769,943

3,338,956,003

11,469,925

-

11,469,925

608,980,979

4,613,217

12,817,415

15,243,022

203,544,382

845,199,015

31,399,999

91,915

549,835

4,065

1,223,644

37,999,747

220,000

537,798

-

-

-

72,027,003

709,826

7,806,288

2,827,897

2,497,691

19,860,451

1,322,362

5,315,906

38,122,900

284,571,326

563,554

10,327,031

3,839,299

6,260,676

1,129,409

9,913,691

-

20,511,860

16,602

3,074,026

22,256,859

57,889,753

1,300,153

12,238,395

16,014,485

2,535,225

18,474,366

17,783,692

567,163,723

Inflation
Adjusted
2022
ZWL$

Inflation
Adjusted
2021
ZWL$

Historical
Cost
2022
ZWL$

Historical
Cost
2021
ZWL$

Notes of the Finanacial Statements
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17.1. Basis ofpreparation
for electricityaccount

The electricity account is prepared on cash
basis to reflect the actual performance of the
electricity subsector inreal termsascompared to
the accrualbasis of reporting.

Notes to the financial statements

Notes to the financial statements

17. Incomeattributable toRural
ElectrificationFund

In accordance with the Energy Regulatory
Authority Act (Chapter13:23) section 31, ZERA
is required to remit surplus funds realized in the
electricity account to the Rural Electrification
Fund. As at 31 December 2022, an audited cash
electricity receiptsand expenditurestatement

was prepared andaudited, andthe accounthasa
deficit of ZWL$ 353,574,405 henceno remittance
will be made to the Rural Electrification Fund.
In 2021 a surplus of ZWL$28,749,071 was
recognized. Below is the electricity cash receipts
and expenditure statement for 2022:

Receipts- ElectricityPortion

Cash receipts

Audit Fees

Cleaning Consumables

Computer Expenses

Consulting & Professional Fees

Insurance

Printing &Stationery

Admin Overheads

Research &Development

Subscriptions -News

Corporate SocialResponsibility

Lease Rentals

Motor Vehicle-Expenses

Employment Costs

Board fees and Sitting Allowances

AA PrivateMileage

Entertainment

Travel andAcc-Local

Travel and Acc External

Communication Costs

Courier &Postage

Workshop &Seminars

Advertising and Promotional Costs

Bank Charges

Exchange RateLoss

Capital Expenditure

Total Expenses

Cash Surplus/(Deficit) for the year

3,539,978,259

(1,812,378)

(15,855,703)

(35,312,253)

(176,774,799)

(43,295,974)

(6,868,559)

(579,041,913)

(141,385,681)

(12,502,064)

(20,341,507)

(105,393,934)

(53,570,217)

(2,156,037,852)

(14,682,925)

(148,539,063)

(7,365,896)

(324,783,506)

(221,176,670)

(103,213,843)

(467,074)

(498,387,564)

(177,200,252)

(128,576,675)

(66,263,336)

(517,840,308)

(5,556,689,946)

(2,016,711,687)

1,888,170,531

(2,965,843)

(4,800,246)

(9,505,029)

(67,303,698)

(23,401,113)

(3,540,936)

(107,102,570)

(4,974,219)

(10,047,733)

(17,664,112)

(38,415,823)

(51,726,828)

(1,043,731,302)

(10,551,149)

-

(1,893,749)

(64,186,896)

(8,017,353)

(57, 947,537)

(65, 672)

(48,001,540)

(87,313,795)

(28,292,744)

(33,718,334)

(49,144,593)

(1,774,312,814)

113,857,717

2,706,116,694

(997,953)

(8,730,657)

(19,444,055)

(97,337,855)

(23,840,147)

(3,782,048)

(318,838,986)

(77,851,475)

(6,884,036)

(11,200,684)

(58,033,269)

(29,497,474)

(1,187,183,357)

(8,084,888)

(81,790,356)

(4,055,898)

(178,836,180)

(121,786,944)

(56,832,841)

(257,186)

(274,428,123)

(97,572,123)

(70,798,427)

(36,486,711)

(285,139,426)

(3,059.691,099)

(353,574,405)

441,614,858

(603,352)

(1,067,029)

(1,754,999)

(14,102,365)

(5,321,574)

(861,406)

(24,675,799)

(800,936)

(3,055,252)

(3,500,357)

(8,508,416)

(10,485,579)

(238,061,009)

(2,403,713)

-

(479,021)

(12,537,779)

(2,156,588)

(13,028,612)

(13,765)

(12,496,209)

(19,467,002)

(6,635,402)

(16,874,234)

(13,975,389)

(412,865,787)

28,749,071

Inflation
Adjusted
2022
ZWL$

Inflation
Adjusted
2021
ZWL$

Historical
Cost
2022
ZWL$

Historical
Cost
2021
ZWL$

Notes of the Finanacial Statements
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18. RelatedPartyDisclosures

The amount disclosed above is the amount
recognized as an expense during the reporting
period related to non-Executive boardmembers’
fees (2022 $ 5,216,033 and 2021 $ 924,252) and
keymanagement personnel (2022 $ 119,251,896
and 2021 $ 36,093,100). For key management
personnel, the figure includes salary and bonus,
medical aid, pension, security and motoring
benefits.

19. Leasecommitment classifiedas
rightofuseasset

ZERA entered into a lease agreement with Old
Mutual Properties for ZERA Harare Head Office
space, Zimbabwe International Trade Fair for
ZERA Bulawayo Regional Office space and Zimre
Properties for ZERA Mutare Regional Office
space and these havebeen recognised as rightof
use assets in the statement of financialposition in
compliance with IFRS 16. The lease agreements
have a remaining term of two years and there is
a renewal clause.
Future minimumrental payableare as follows as:

20.Riskmanagement

ZERA has in place a Risk management policy
whose thrust is on identifying, assessing,
managing andmonitoring all known forms of risk
across the organization. While risks cannot be
fully eliminated,ZERAendeavorsto minimiseitby
ensuringthatappropriate infrastructure,controls,
systems, and ethical behavior are applied and
managed within predetermined procedures and
constraints. The following are the financial risks
pertaining to 2022 financial statements.

20.1 Financial riskmanagement

ZERA’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair
value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk
and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

20.1.1 Interest rate risk

ZERA has significant interestbearing assets, these
assets relate to investments that are at market
rates. ZERA has invested in fixed interest money
market investments, hence interest receivable
is not affected by fluctuations of interest rates
and as a result the sensitivity analysis was not
performed.

20.1.2Credit risk

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits,
cash equivalents and trade debtors. ZERA only
deposits cash with major banks with sound
financial standing. The followings were the banks
and financial partners ZERA dealt with in 2022:
(a) ZB
(b) Stanbic
(c) EcoCash

Notes to the financial statements

Trade receivables comprise a widespread
customer base. Management evaluated credit
risk relating to customers onan on-going basis. If
customers are independently rated, these ratings

Short-Term Historical Historical
Employment Benefits 2022 2021

ZWL$ ZWL$

Executive management
remuneration and benefits 119,251,896 36,093,100

Non- Executive
Board members fees 5,216,033 924,252

Subtotals 124,467,929 37,017,352

Other transactions

Skills Retention- Ministryof
Energy and PowerDevelopment 136,046779,434

Total related party transactions 124,601,975 37,796,786

Within one year 73,900,000

After one year 56,400,000

Total 130,300,000

Future minimum rental Historical
payable are as follows ZWL$
as at 31 December 2022
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are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent
rating, risk control assesses the credit quality of
the customer, taking into account its financial
position, past experience and other factors.
Individual risk limits are set based on internal
or external ratings in accordance with limits set
by the board. The utilisation of credit limits is
regularlymonitored.

Financial assetsexposedtocredit riskatyear-end
were as follows:

20.1.3 Liquidity risk

ZERA maintains sufficient cash and cash
equivalents. Management reviews cash flow
forecasts on a regular basis to determine
whether ZERA has sufficient cash reserves
to meet future working capital requirements
and to fund initiatives to fulfill mandate. ZERA
has good relations with financial institutions to
access additional means of easing liquidity risk if
considered necessary.

21. Contingencies liabilities

Note 21.1 to 21.3 details the contingent liabilities
in the reporting period.

21.1. ZERA Head office Construction
Contractor-Nantong International

Nantong International, the ZERA Head Office
building Contractor submitted aclaimamounting
to US$4,193,673which theAuthority isdisputing.
The project which is 65% complete has been
suspended. Discussions are in progress between
Nantong International and ZERA through
the Project Managers (Studio Arts). Nantong
International is claiming for the exchange rate
loss andcharging interest,citing thatthe contract
was signed during the US Dollars era in 2018
when theeconomy wasoperating ona 1:1basis.
The Contractor is alsoclaiming the IMT Tax,costs
incurred during the suspension of the project.

21.2. Busumandale Farm (Pvt) Ltd

A claim in regards to the following was received
and thematter isbefore theCourt;
a.Payment of US$64,344.70 or its equivalent in
RTGS dollars at the prevailing Auction rate being
damages incurred by the Plaintiff as a result of
the Defendant’s breach of contractand failure to
issue the Plaintiff with a procurement licence for
the year2020.
b.An order compelling ZERA to issue a
procurement licence to its assignee.
c.Interest thereon on the prescribed rate from
the dateof summonsto dateof payment in full;
d.Costs of suit on a legal practitioner and client
scale.

21.3. Meizon Petroleum and Logistics
(Pvt) Ltd is claiming the following;

A claim in regards to the following was received
and thematter isbefore theCourt;

a.Payment of US$77 420.00 or its equivalent in
RTGS dollars at the prevailing Auction rate being
damages incurred by the Plaintiff as a result of
the Defendant’s breach of contractand failure to
issue the Plaintiff with a procurement licence for
the year2020.
b.An order compelling ZERA to issue a
procurement licence to its assignee.
c.Interest thereon on the prescribed rate from
the dateof summonsto dateof payment in full;
d.Costs of suit on a legal practitioner and client
scale.

22. Pensionand retirementsbenefits

ZERA contributes to a defined pension benefit
plan, whichis administeredbyOldMutual Pension
Fundandto theNationalSocialSecurityAuthority
(NSSA), which is a defined contributory fund.

The contributionstoOldMutual PensionFund are
10% and 7.5% of themonthly basic salary by the
employer andemployee respectively.

Contributions to NSSA are 4.5% and 4.5% of
the monthly basic salary by the employer and
employee respectively.
ZERA also contributes 1.25% towards Worker’s
Compensation Insurance Fund (WCIF) on

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other
receivables

Short-Term
Employment Benefits

1,702,465,181

1,615,873,887

Historic
2022
ZWL$

Historic
2021
ZWL$

256,469,737

208,603,290
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behalf of its employees. The amount charged
through the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income during the year under
review is indicated in the tablebelow.

23. Subsequent events

After the end of the reporting period, the
Authority received a correspondence from the
Office of the President and Cabinet
indicating a
review of board fees and sitting allowances with
effect from the 1st of July 2022. The total amount
of fees and sitting allowances which were due

at the end of the reporting period was ZWL$
6,088,600 and this is an arrear which will be
cleared after approval is granted by the Ministry
of Energy and Power Development.

24. Disclosure on Foreign Currency
TransactionsandBalances

In compliance with the recommended reporting
guidelines issued by the Public Accountants
and Auditors Board, the Authority has elected
to provide enhanced disclosures on foreign
currency transactions and balances with effect
from the 1st of January 2022.

25.1 Statement of Profit and loss and
OtherComprehensive Income

Thefollowingtabledepictsa listingof transactions
which were presented in the Statement of Profit
and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for
the yearended 31 December 2022;

National Social Security
Authority

Old Mutual Pension Fund

Total

Details

21,133,015

35,390,610

56,523,625

Historic
2022
ZWL$

Historic
2021
ZWL$

1,903,401

9,293,058

11,195,459
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25.2Statementof Financial Position

The following table depicts additions to non-
current assets and the closing cash balance as at
31 December2022;

Revenue

Electricity annual levies

Electricity licenses application fees

Electricity licenses fees

Liquid petroleum gas license fees

Petroleum licenses fees

Other Income

Tender and Trainings Income

Investment Interest

Interest on Current Account

Miscellaneous Income - Proceeds from Asset Disposal

Operational Expenses

Consulting and professional fees

Insurance

Printing and Stationery

Office Administration and Repairs & Maintenance

Research and Development

Corporatemembership affiliation fees

Motor vehicle repairs and maintenance

Employee Costs

Entertainment Allowances

Workshops, Seminars and Training

Travel and Accommodation Costs

Food and refreshments

Advertising

Bank Charges

1,907,280

-

7,500

26,000

29,800

1,843,980

43,395

4,646

20,734

15,880

2,135

909,500

177,139

15,897

509

34,971

11,935

85,156

8,401

289,924

32

61,282

159,639

316

9,036

55,263

Zimbabwe Energy Regulatory Authority
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022
US$

Revenue

Motor Vehicles

Assets Under Construction

Building

1,060,773

875,248

90,660

94,865

Zimbabwe Energy Regulatory Authority
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022
US$
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Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash at Bank

Fixed Term Deposit (Money Market Placement)

2,383,983

1,363,251

1,020,732

Zimbabwe Energy Regulatory Authority
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022
US$

25.3Statement ofCashflows

The following table is an excerpt of foreign
currency transactions included the Statement of
Cashflows for the year ended 31 December 2022;

26. Goingconcern

Management have reviewed the Authority
budget and cash flow forecasts to 31 December
2023 and in light of this review and the current
financial position, are satisfied that ZERA has the

ability to continue operating as a going concern
and believe that the preparation of these financial
statements onagoingconcern isstill appropriate.
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